
 

 

 
Wednesday, 1 June 2022 
 
To:   Members of the MCA - Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and Appropriate 

Officers 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are hereby summoned to a meeting of the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 
Authority to be held at 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ, on: Thursday, 9 June 
2022 at 11.00 am for the purpose of transacting the business set out in the agenda. 
 

 
Dr Dave Smith 
Chief Executive/ Head of Paid Service 
 
 
 
 
 

Webcasting Notice 
 

This meeting will be streamed live or subsequent broadcast via the Mayoral Combined 
Authority’s website. 
 
You should be aware that the Mayoral Combined Authority is a Data Controller under the 
Data Protection Act 2018.  Data collected during this webcast will be retained in 
accordance with the Mayoral Combined Authority’s published policy. 
 
By entering the meeting room, you are consenting to be filmed and to the possible use of 
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
 

 

You can view the agenda and papers  
at www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
or use a smart phone camera  
and scan the QR code: 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/


 

 

Member Distribution 
 
Councillor Phillip Lofts (Chair) Barnsley MBC 
Rhys Jarvis (Vice-Chair) (Independent Member) 
Angela Marshall (Independent Member) 
Councillor Allan Jones Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Austen White Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Ben Curran Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Emily Barley Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Joanna Baker-Rogers Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Joe Otten Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Ken Richardson Barnsley MBC 
 



 

 

 
MCA - Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

 
 

Thursday, 9 June 2022 at 11.00 am 
 
Venue:  11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 

 

1.   Welcome and Apologies    

2.   Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair  Steve 
Davenport 

 

3.   Urgent Items/Announcements    

4.   Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public 
and Press  

  

5.   Declarations of Interest by any Members    

6.   Reports from and Questions by Members    

7.   Questions from Members of the Public    

8.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 24 March 
2022  

 5 - 14 

9.   Matters Arising/Action Tracker - Update   15 - 18 

10.   Annual Report of the Chair of the Audit, Standards 
& Risk Panel - 31 March 2022  

Angela 
Marshall 

19 - 28 

11.   Risk Management  Liz Morris 29 - 40 

12.   Draft Accounts Progress Report  Mike  
Thomas 

41 - 44 

13.   Internal Audit Reports 
 

a) Internal Audit Progress Report 
b) Internal Audit Recommendations Report 
c) Draft Annual Report and Interim Head of 

Internal Audit Opinion 
 

Lisa 
Mackenzie 

45 - 82 

14.   Findings of the Annual Governance Review and 
Draft Annual Governance Statement (including 
Governance Improvement Plan 202/23)  

Claire 
James 

83 - 98 

15.   Draft Chair's Annual Report  Claire 
James 

99 - 112 

16.   Health and Safety Update/Report  Lynne 
Sutton 

113 - 124 



 

 

17.   Breach of Controls Report  Gareth 
Sutton 

 

18.   Work Plan  Claire 
James 

125 - 128 

Date of next meeting:   Thursday, 14 July 2022 at 11.00 am 

At:  11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ  



MCA - AUDIT, STANDARDS AND RISK COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
THURSDAY, 24 MARCH 2022 AT 11.00 AM 
 
11 BROAD STREET WEST, SHEFFIELD S1 2BQ 
 

 

 
Present: 
Councillor Phillip Lofts (Chair) Barnsley MBC 
Angela Marshall (Independent Member) 
Councillor Ian Auckland Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Ken Richardson Barnsley MBC 
Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards Sheffield City Council 
 
In Attendance: 
Peter Clark Internal Auditor Grant Thornton 
Lisa Mackenzie Internal Auditor Grant-Thornton 
Dr Dave Smith Chief Executive / Head of Paid Service SYMCA Executive Team 
Gareth Sutton Chief Finance Officer/S73 Officer SYMCA Executive Team 
Mike Thomas Senior Finance Manager/ Deputy S73 

Officer 
SYMCA Executive Team 

Claire James Interim Integration Programme Manager SYMCA Executive Team 
Liz Morris Risk Manager SYMCA Executive Team 
Tim Taylor Director of Public Transport Operations South Yorkshire 

Passenger Transport 
Executive 

 
Apologies: 
Councillor Austen White Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Joanna Baker-Rogers Rotherham MBC 
Dan Spiller External Audit 
Hassan Rohimun External Audit 
Reyna Ramdhani External Auditors 
Dr Ruth Adams SYMCA Executive Team 
 
Absent 
Cllr Ben Curran Sheffield City Council 
 
19 Welcome and Apologies for morning session 

 
 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

 
It was noted that Cllr R Jones and R Jarvis were attending virtually and would 
therefore not be officially classed as present at the meeting or able to vote, 
therefore the meeting was not quorate. 
 
Apologies were noted as above. 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 8



 

20 Urgent Items/Announcements 
 

 None. 
 

21 Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public and Press 
 

 None. 
 

22 Declarations of Interest by any Members 
 

 None. 
 

23 Reports from and Questions by Members 
 

 None. 
 

24 Questions from Members of the Public 
 

 None. 
 

25 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held on 27 January 2022 
 

 It was noted that a Treasury Management tutorial had not been arranged as 
mentioned on page 12 of the minutes.  Members expressed the wish that this 
should still go ahead and it was agreed to arrange the tutorial in the near future. 
 
Action:  Treasury Management workshop to be arranged.  C Marriott. 
 
T Taylor confirmed that there was no outstanding litigation against the SYMCA 
that had resulted from accidents with the Operators. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 27th January 2022 be 
agreed as a true record. 
 

26 Update from ASRC - Advisory Panel Meeting - verbal 
 

 A Marshall gave an update from the recent Advisory Panel meeting. 
 
Matters covered included: 
 

 Business Update, a focus on the drop on patronage, government 
funding and possible service cuts by the operators  

 Performance Dashboard – a focus on customer service. 

 Internal Audit – to be discussed today. 

 External Audit – disappointment expressed there was no officers present 
form EY.  MCA officers to advised the Panel that there would be a delay 
to the external audit timetable.  

 Continued work is underway on the Risk Management Framework. 

 The PTE Risk Register - looking particularly at risks with a safety 
element. 

 The deep dive on bus and other transport issues had been completed. 

 There were two remaining deep dives to be completed on the Enhanced 

Page 6



 

Partnership and the Capital Programme – dates are to be arranged. 

 An update on the Integration Programme. 

 The Panel were reminded that there would still be two legal 
organisations until formal dissolution of the PTE and work arounds were 
in place to manage that. 

 The future of the Panel post 1 April 2022.  This was being referred back 
to the Committee for decision as to whether there was any future need 
for the Panel after the final PTE accounts had been signed off. 

 
The Chair felt it would be useful for the Panel to make some recommendations 
to the Committee as to its future. 
 
Cllr Richards commented that she found the report from the Panel useful and 
suggested the Panel should also look at the planned ‘lessons learned’ report 
following the completion of integration.  It was also suggested that, going 
forward, the Panel could be used to look at some meatier issues and report 
back to the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee. 
 
The Chair thanked A Marshall for the update. 
 

27 Strategic Risk Monitoring 
 

 L Morris presented a report which provided an update on the MCA’s corporate 
risks which had been devised and reviewed over the previous months.  The 
Management Board had re-considered the Corporate Risk Register during a 
meeting devoted to the topic of governance in February 2022.  The latest 
version of the Corporate Risk Register was attached at Appendix A to the 
report. 
 
The report provided the Committee with a narrative summary setting out key 
activity the MCA was taking against the high and medium/high corporate risks.  
At Appendix B, was the proposed final version of the Risk Management 
Framework document including a Risk Appetite Statement which had been 
prepared following a request from the Committee.  A heatmap and bar chart 
had also been created, again at the request of the Committee, and was 
included in the body of the report. 
 
Since the paper had been written an announcement had been made that 
additional recovery funding would be available for bus and light rail, and an 
additional risk had been added in relation to the Adult Education Budget.  At the 
time of writing, supplier monitoring visits were being undertaken to provide 
forecasts for the end of the year. The current forecast for this risk was 
medium/high and the Committee was asked to note this.  It was also noted that 
the Education, Skills and Employability Board had recently received a 
performance report with regard to the Adult Education Budget. 
 
Cllr Richards queried how much risk there was around the potential for policy 
change after the election of the new Mayor, and what was being done to 
prepare for this. 
 
D Smith replied that there was potential for significant change.  Once 
nominations had closed, candidates would issue their manifestos which officers 

Page 7



 

could then analyse to understand priorities and prepare a position for each 
candidate. 
 
Alongside this there was the MCA Board made up of the four local authority 
Leaders who had already set policies which were expected to remain and 
provide some continuity. 
 
Cllr Richards suggested that the new Mayor be invited to a meeting of the 
ASRC.  This was agreed. 
 
Action:  The newly elected Mayor to be invited to attend an ASRC 
meeting.   
 
Cllr Auckland commented on the ‘red’ risks across bus and tram which were 
dependent on government funding, the mitigations of consultations before 
changes to bus services and the position of the reserves to support services 
beyond October when government emergency funding ceased.  T Taylor 
replied that Operators had to formally give 70 days’ notice of any statutory 
changes to their network, officers had already been sighted on and had 
discussions regarding proposed service changes. 
With regard to the reserve, G Sutton informed the Committee that the £7m 
reserve was there to provide a bridge to a commercially sustainable network 
and was not a sustainable source of long-term funding. 
 
In answer to a question from A Marshall, L Morris informed the Committee that 
it was the intention that the MCA Board would receive an annual report on the 
Framework documents including the full position on risks. 
 
It was noted that the risks presented to the Committee in the future was in 
development and would become clearer as the portfolio of risks was built up. 
 
D Smith commented that it was in everyone’s interests that the Committee had 
everything it needed to assist the organisation to identify and address risks.  
The situation would be kept under review. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the report and note the inclusion of the 
additional risk around the Adult Education Budget. 
 

28 Internal Audit Reports 
 

 L Mackenzie presented a report which provided an update on the progress of 
the 2021/22 Group Internal Audit Plan. 
 
E Mayne informed the Committee that she was moving to another portfolio and 
introduced Peter Clark, currently the Public Sector Director within Grant 
Thornton who will be undertaking the role of Head of Internal Audit. 
 
L Mackenzie reported that 185 days of the planned 211 days of the revised 
joint plan had been delivered.  No final report had been produced since the last 
meeting of the Committee.  Fieldwork was in progress in respect of the Risk 
Management review and scoping and planning had commenced on respect of 
the governance review. 

Page 8



 

 
The following changes had been made to the Audit Plan: 
 

 24 days had been removed and would be used for completing a value 
for money review of Community Transport. 

 Following discussions with Executive Officers, it had been proposed to 
roll the review of AEB forward into the 2022/23 Audit Plan to enable a 
first full cycle review – 28 audit days to be carried forward. 

 
In response to a question from A Marshall, it was confirmed that the review of 
Community Transport would commence in April 2022. 
 
Tracker Report 
 
L Mackenzie reported that there were no overdue recommendations and seven 
recommendations had been implemented since the last meeting.  It was noted 
that there were a number of recommendations that were due by the end of 
March. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the report and recommend approval of 
the changes to the Audit Plan contained within the report. 
 
Cllr Otten joined the meeting remotely at this point. 
 

29 Integration Update 
 

 C James presented a paper reporting on the assurance activity for the 
Integration Programme. 
 
It was noted that work to mobilise the first phase of integration to form a single 
organisation, the implementation of the organisational design and operating 
model was on track to complete before the end of the financial year.  All major 
milestones had been met however the legislative order to formally dissolve the 
PTE had not met the original anticipated timescale of year end. It was noted 
that officials had now confirmed the key milestones to ensure that the order is 
progressed during 2022/23. 
 
The ASRC Advisory Panel had considered a summary of the assurance activity 
undertaken by the programme Management office at its meeting on 10 March 
2022.  The report to the Panel also set out the Programme Closure Plan which 
aimed to ensure the Programme was closed in a controlled way and the 
maximum benefit was extracted. 
 
The Programme Closure report would be considered by the Programme Board 
on 29 March 2022 and would be circulated to the Panel for information. 
 
It was noted that work would be undertaken to review workstreams and 
programme level risks and map them to corporate risks and to inform risk 
consideration at a business plan level. 
 
A Marshall conveyed congratulations to all involved for keeping the project on 
track. 

Page 9



 

 
At this point the meeting broke for lunch. 
 

30 Welcome and apologies for afternoon session 
 

 The Chair welcomed everyone to the afternoon session of the Committee and 
noted apologies from Cllr Richardson and M Thomas. 
 

31 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan 
 

 A report was submitted which provided an update on the progress of the 
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan. 
 
The report described the background information taken into consideration when 
pulling the plan together and also looked at previous internal audit work and the 
strategy that was set in previous years. 
 
L Makenzie informed the Committee that the draft plan consisted of 237 days 
which included 28 brought forward from the previous year and took into 
consideration the 41 days taken out of the previous years’ plan towards the 
Community Transport review. 
 
The days had been broken down into areas which were considered to be core 
to being able to give a Head of Internal Audit opinion.  There was also a focus 
on specific follow-up work where there had been a partial assurance opinion, 
namely the Asset Management review and the Supplier Resilience review.  
 
The remainder of days had been discussed with management and they had 
been split over the three key risk areas identified for the year which were the 
Adult Education Budget, Integration and the Net Zero Governance piece. An 
indicative timeline for the plan was contained within the report.  It was noted 
that the plan was subject to discussion as it was recognised that priorities could 
change during the year. 
 
The Committee discussed the apparently excessive number of days for the 
Community Transport Review.   L Mackenzie explained that the review would 
be conducted by a specialist advisory team and not carried out at the agreed 
internal audit day rate.  The days had been calculated on an almost 2 for 1 
basis as the specialist advisory team had much higher day rates. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee recommend approval of the draft Internal 
Audit Plan for 2022/23. 
 

32 Committee Effectiveness 
 

 A report was considered which outlined the purpose of the annual effectiveness 
survey and provided, for information, the questions posed to members via an 
online survey active between 8 and 21 March 2022. 
 
The survey concentrated on three main areas, the skills and knowledge of the 
Committee, relationships between members and officers and administration 
and operational requirements. 

Page 10



 

 
It was noted there had been a 2/3rds response rate. 
 
C James gave a presentation of the results which included: 

 Skills and knowledge -  members were asked to rate their understanding 
of the role and responsibilities of the Committee – average score was 4 
(out of a possible 5). 

 Effectiveness of the Committee in key areas of accountability – this 
showed an opportunity for improvement particularly in relation to 
understanding the control environment.  

 Members’ knowledge of the core business of the organisation and wider 
political landscape – this gave an equal split of satisfaction and 
dissatisfaction. 

 Areas for knowledge and development included the control environment 
and MCA strategies and plans. 

 Concern was expressed with levels of elected member attendance. 

 Respondents acknowledged the range of expertise brought in by the 
independent members. 

 
The Committee was informed that next steps were to work through the detail 
and the comments and develop an action plan and to feed the results and plan 
into the Chairs’ report to the MCA. 
 
The Chair commented that attendance was not satisfactory from elected 
members, although acknowledging in some cases there could be good reasons 
for this.  He also acknowledged the ‘churn’ in membership due to election 
results.  
 
The Committee discussed the issue at length, making the following 
comments/suggestions: 
 

 Appointing more independent members to the Committee. 

 Consideration of remuneration for Committee members. 

 Automatically appointing the Chair of each local authority’s Audit 
Committee to the MCA Audit Committee. 

 The importance of a strong induction process. 

 Giving voting rights to independent members. 

 The value of having the work of the Committee recognised. 
 
Action:   The Committee agreed unanimously that the matter of attendance 
needed to be addressed and asked officers to prepare an options paper with a 
view to increasing member attendance. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and survey findings be noted. 
 

33 Initial findings of the Annual Governance Review 
 

 A report was submitted which provided the Committee with the initial findings of 
the Annual Governance Review which had been carried out in line with CIPFA 
guidance and indicated the high-level areas of governance improvement. 
 
 

Page 11



 

It was noted that through work undertaken to date, a good level of compliance 
had been identified. 
 
Activity had included Group Management Board workshops and a broader 
discussion which reflected on the challenges faced by the organisation and the 
effectiveness of governance for dealing with these. 
 
Key areas for governance improvement were across four broader areas and 
had a clear relationship with the CIPFA principles of good governance.   
 
These were: 
 

 Strategy 

 Stakeholder Relationships 

 Customer Focus 

 Organisational Development and Capability 
 
Management Board were working though the detail in each area to develop the 
improvement plan for 2022/23. 
 
Next steps included the circulation of a draft governance plan to members 
during April for comment and a draft Annual Governance Statement presented 
to members to the Committee meeting in June which would also include the 
governance plan. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

34 Annual Review of Code of Corporate Governance 
 

 A report was submitted which presented a Code of Corporate Governance for 
the integrated organisation. 
 
The Committee noted that, in line with a commitment to review the Code of 
Corporate Governance annually, the existing MCA Code had been reviewed 
against the CIPFA framework taking into account the priorities and operating 
environment of the single organisation from 1 April 2022.  The proposed Code 
recognised that the SYPTE would still exist as a legal entity until the point of 
formal dissolution and therefore was still required to have a formal statement in 
place.  Key areas of enhancement were contained within the report. 
 
Members were informed that the Code of Corporate Governance would be 
presented to the MCA Board in June 2022 for approval. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

35 Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action 
 

 The Committee considered a report which provided an update on progress 
against the 2021/22 Governance Improvement Plan. 
 
Members were reminded that the Governance Improvement Plan 2021/22 
contained 23 actions, some with two aspects – a development stage and an 

Page 12



 

implementation stage.  As the financial year was ending, there were some 
areas or actions that would transition into the new year including the target 
operation models for financial management, procurement and programme 
management as well as collaborative working mechanisms and continual 
improvements to programme development. 
 
It was noted that there would also be some continuing work on developing 
reporting arrangements for monitoring corporate and business plans and 
ensuring corporate governance oversight. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee note the final status of the Governance 
Improvement Plan. 
 

36 Assurance Framework 
 

 Members were informed that every year the MCA and LEP were required to 
update and publish the Assurance Framework to outline the robust, transparent 
and effective governance arrangements in place.  Following devolution, the 
Assurance Framework also needed to be approved by four government 
departments.  The MCA was also required to produce and publish a Monitoring 
and Evaluation Framework. 
 
A report was submitted that summarised the amendments that had been 
incorporated into the Assurance Framework following an initial review by the 
government.  It was noted that the frameworks would be published on the MCA 
website in draft form on 31 March 2022, pending government approval. 
 
Members were informed that the draft Assurance Framework (at Appendix A to 
the report) incorporated the re-branding of the MCA, the name changes for the 
MCA and LEP and the integration of SYPTE with the MCA, including transport 
operations. 
 
The key amendments to the Framework following the government’s initial 
review were: 
 

 Structure Diagram – updated chart for the MCA Executive Team 
following the integration pf the MCA and SYPTE. 

 Updated Assurance Process. 

 Inclusion of Key Performance Indicators. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Committee: 
 
i) Note, at section 2.2 of the report, the key amendments that had been 

made to the Assurance Framework following the initial review by 
government. 

 
ii) Recommend adoption of the updated Assurance Framework set out at 
 Appendix A. 
 

37 Committee Work Plan 
 

 The Committee considered its Work Plan. 

Page 13



 

 
C James commented that an item on Health and Safety had been scheduled 
for every meeting but the cycle of meetings did not tie in with Committee 
meetings.  A report, when available, would be circulated outside of the meeting. 
 

 
I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
 
Signed  

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 14



 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee  
 

Action Log from 1 January 2022  
 
 

Open and Recently Completed Actions 

 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

24/03/2022 25 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held 
on 27 January 2022 
 
Minute: It was noted that a Treasury Management 
tutorial had not been arranged as mentioned on page 
12 of the minutes. Members expressed the wish that 
this should still go ahead and it was agreed to 
arrange the tutorial in the near future. 
 
Treasury Management workshop to be arranged.  

C Marriott Training is being 
arranged for mid June 
2022.   

Ongoing 

24/03/2022 32 Committee Effectiveness 
 
Minute: The Committee agreed unanimously that the 
matter of attendance needed to be addressed and 
asked officers to prepare an options paper with a 
view to increasing member attendance. 

C James Options paper being 
presented to MCA on 
06/06/22 

Ongoing 

 

Completed Actions 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

27/01/2022 9 Health and Safety Update/Report 
 

T Taylor  Complete 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 9



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

Minute: T Taylor replied that periodic reporting was 
received from Stagecoach. He was 
unaware of any accidents that had led to legal 
representation by the complainants; he would 
ascertain the position. He would remind Stagecoach 
of the request to provide accident and health and 
safety statistics to be fed into the report. There was 
not a definitive view in relation to SYMCA’s 
responsibility for those accidents that had occurred 
on its premises, which would be dependent upon the 
nature of the accidents; legal council could be 
sought if required. 
 
T Taylor to ascertain whether there was any SYMCA 
litigation that had resulted from accidents with the 
operators. 
 

27/01/2022 12 Draft 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy 
Report 
 
Minute: Councillor Jones highlighted a typographical 
error within Section B of Appendix 
1 to the report, which should indicate that the other 
long-term liabilities set out in the table above 
represented the PFI liability in respect of Doncaster 
Interchange. 
 
M Thomas to amend the document prior to being 
presented to the SYMCA Board for approval. 
 

M Thomas  Complete 

27/02/2022 15 Internal Audit Reports 
 

L Mackenzie L Mackenzie stated 
that it would not be 

Closed 

P
age 16



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

Minute: In response to a number of queries raised 
by Members regarding the difficulties encountered in 
reading the reports on their devices, L Mackenzie 
would ascertain whether the documents could be 
produced in a more easier to read format. 

possible to change the 
format of the Grant 
Thornton reports. 
 
C Marriott will make 
paper copies of the 
reports available at 
the meeting. 

27/02/2022 12 Draft 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy 
Report 
 
Minute: Councillor Jones suggested that it would be 
worthwhile for the Committee to have a separate 
update on treasury management issues. 
 
G Sutton to schedule a tutorial to be held at the next 
premeeting of the Committee. 

G Sutton Training is being 
arranged for mid June 
2022.   

New action 
opened from 
March 
meeting.  
This action 
therefore 
closed.   

      

      

 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

Annual Report of the Chair of the Audit, Standards & Risk Panel 
31 March 2022  

1. Introduction 

1.1 This is the annual report of the Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee (A&RC) for the 
SYPTE covering the financial year to March 2022. It summarises the A&RC’s 
activities for that period, identifying the main issues the Committee considered in the 
year and concluding with recommendations for the coming year.   

1.2 This has been a transition year for both the SYPTE and the committee.  The 
integration programme will bring together the PTE and the MCA into one new and 
expanded organisation as from 1 April 2022.  As part of this programme, the A&RC 
became a sub-committee of the MCA Audit, Standards & Risk Committee (AS&RC) 
in July 2021 and is now known as the Audit, Standards & Risk Panel (AS&RP).   

1.3 Its responsibilities as regards the operations of the PTE remain the same though it 
now acts as an advisory body to the MCA AS&RC. The responsibilities of the Panel 
will be reviewed by the AS&RC once the integration of the two organisations is 
completed to determine the Panel’s future role.    

1.4 Continuing the work of the A&RC, the Panel has a key role in the governance of the 
PTE.  Its principal function now is to assure the AS&RC that the basic processes of 
financial reporting, internal control, risk management and corporate governance are 
in place, robust and operating effectively.  The scope of its work is defined in its 
terms of reference that are agreed with and approved by the AS&RC.   

1.5 The Panel has a work plan from which its agendas are set and this covers not only 
matters that have to be considered but any matters that the PTE Executive, the 
AS&RS and the Panel consider to be areas of concern from a risk, assurance or 
governance perspective as well as any emerging issues or new business 
arrangements.   

2. Membership and Meetings of the Audit & Risk Panel 

2.1 The A&RC met once in the period to May 2021. The Panel took over its role in July 
2021.   

2.2 From July 2021, the Panel membership became four – the two external independent 
members, one of whom is the Chair and two Councillors, nominated by the Chair of 
the AS&RC.  The two Councillor members joined the Panel in Sept and Oct 
respectively.   

2.3 Although there is no set quorum for the Panel, for decisions it is necessary to have 
one independent and one AS&RC member present.  The July meeting did not meet 
this criterion, it was only attended by the two independents members. 

2.4 The Panel has met four times since July 2021 and attendance has been as follows:   

Angela Marshall     4/4  
Rhys Jarvis      4/4 
Cllr Ken Richardson     3/4 
Cllr Ben Curran    1/4 

Page 19

Agenda Item 10



2 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

It is disappointing not to have had both Councillor members available to provide input 
and insight to the Panel’s reviews. 

2.5 The Executive Director of the PTE, as the Senior Responsible Officer, attends 
meetings of the Panel as does the Director of Customer Services and the Senior 
Finance Manager of the MCA, acting as the Interim Head of Financial Services for 
the PTE.  The Interim Head of Financial Services has oversight of the day-to-day 
running of financial activities at the PTE and attends each meeting.  The Group 
Finance Director for the MCA, who has oversight of financial activities across the 
whole group, has a standing invitation to attend the Panel.   

2.6 Although these officers are not members of the Panel, they provide both context and 
a full briefing to members on current business issues, as well as contributing to the 
Panel’s deliberations on risk, internal audit and external audit progress.   

3. The Panel’s Work  

3.1 The main areas of the Panel’s work currently cover: 

 Financial Reporting and External Audit  

 Risk Management  

 Internal Control and Internal Audit  

 Health & Safety reporting for the PTE 

 Integration process with the SCRMCA. 

3.2 The Panel’s key priority is to seek assurance of the PTE’s ability to meet its 
objectives; maintain effective standards of governance, risk management, financial 
management and control and to test the reliability and integrity of that assurance.   

3.3 The work programme has a series of core items that have to be considered each 
year, building in time to reflect any new issues that may arise and the key risk areas 
for the business.  The Panel are kept up to date by Officers on any new legislation 
that may impact upon the PTE and ensure that briefings are covered in the work 
programme as needed.   

3.4 With the change to become the Panel, we also took on the additional responsibility 
for the assurance of the governance arrangements of the Integration Programme on 
behalf of the AS&RC.  Another additional item on the agendas from July has been 
quarterly reporting on H&S matters for the PTE.    

3.5 The minutes of each meeting are circulated to all those who attended the meeting.  
They are agreed as a true record at the subsequent meeting.  They show the key 
matters discussed, decisions reached, actions agreed and any items we wish to 
particularly draw to the AS&R Committee’s attention.  A copy of the minutes goes to 
the AS&RC.   

3.6 The regular catch-up meetings with the Chair had in previous years with the Heads of 
Internal Audit (IA) and with External Audit (EA) have not continued this year.  The 
independent members of the Panel have catch-up meetings scheduled with the 
Executive Director of the PTE and other officers as necessary between meetings.  
These are very useful to keep the independent members in touch with any business 
developments.  The Panel has not met in private with either the internal or the 
external auditors this year, although the Chair has checked at each meeting if a 
private meeting is required.   

Page 20



3 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

3.7 The financial year has again been dominated by the recovery of the business from 
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and managing the timing and availability of 
Government funding to support this. The return of patronage has been slow and 
intermittent and has been dogged by other issues such as shortage of drivers on bus 
and conductors on tram; industrial action and the short-term nature of the 
government funding horizons.  Though latterly funding has been confirmed through to 
October 2022. 

3.8 One of the key areas for the business this year has been work on the Enhanced Bus 
Partnership with operators alongside the Bus Improvement Plan that was submitted 
to DfT in October, in line with the National Bus Strategy.  The Enhanced Partnership 
is due to come into operation from 1 April 2022.  

3.9 For Light Rail the main area of concern has been the levels of continued government 
funding for the service whilst patronage trys to recover to its pre-pandemic levels.  
The business continues to work with SYSL on performance and improvements to the 
service whilst at the same time preparing for the 2024 end date for the contract and a 
new strategy for light rail. 

3.10 In July the DfT issued its Decarbonising transport: a better greener Britain – the 
government’s commitment and the actions needed to decarbonise the entire 
transport system in the UK and deliver net zero by 2050. The report calls on 
devolved government and local councils to work jointly in accomplishing the net zero 
goal. It identifies Local Transport Plans as the mechanism for delivering quantifiable 
reductions in transport emissions at a local level and makes funding conditional on 
this.  

3.11 The requirement to comply with this report is referenced within the guidance 
document for the City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS) and will 
frame any future discussions on transport. 

3.12 Internally, the integration project, bringing together the PTE and the MCA into one 
new organisation has been a priority to complete to by 1 April 2022.  Although the 
parliamentary timetable cannot accommodate the order necessary to dissolve the 
PTE before that 1 April date, the project is on target to deliver one operating unit from 
1 April though there will continue to be two legal entities until a firm date is agreed for 
the dissolution of the PTE.   

4. Financial Reporting and the External Audit  

4.1 A key area of work for the Panel is the Final Accounts.  The Panel usually carry out a 
review of the key assumptions, narrative and disclosures underpinning the financials 
prior to the final year-end numbers being available.  The unaudited accounts are 
required to be published by 31 May and the external audit then commences in June 
leading to accounts sign-off in July.   However, in 2021/22, as a result of the 
pandemic, the accounting deadline for signing off the accounts was again extended 
to November thus moving the other deadlines back in sequence.  The Finance team, 
however, planned to complete their work to the original deadlines for the accounts 
and did their upmost to complete the accounting process accordingly.  The Panel 
reviewed the draft unaudited accounts before their publication, as usual, in May 
2021.  

4.2 The EA Plan for the year ended 31 March 2021 was presented to the A&RC at the 
May meeting. The plan summarised the team’s initial assessment of the key risks to 
the organisation and outlined the planned audit strategy in response to those risks 
plus any other areas for audit focus.   

Page 21



4 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

4.3 The main risks to be considered again this year were:  

(i) Fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition;  

(ii) Misstatement due to fraud or error; 

(iii) Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment – the PTE has a material asset base, 
valuation is subject to management judgements – this is considered an area of 
inherent risk. 

(iv) Pension Liability Valuation – The pension deficit is a material estimated balance 
and this balance has to be disclosed on the balance sheet.  The auditors are required 
to review the assumptions underlying any value estimates. This area is considered 
one of inherent risk.  

(v) The continuing impact of Covid-19 and Going Concern – although there is a basic 
presumption that the PTE will continue as a going concern in view of its status and 
funding, however, in light of the continued impact of Covid-19 and the unpredictability 
of the current environment, there is a risk to income sources and thus disclosures 
made in the accounts.  Therefore, EA is required to review the going concern 
assessment including a cashflow forecast to ensure that it is thorough and 
appropriately comprehensive.  

(vi) An additional item for audit focus this year was an assessment of the accounting 
treatment for the new and additional Covid-19 grants that have been received from 
central government 

4.4 EA are also required to consider whether the PTE has put in place “proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources”; this is the value for money conclusion.  Under the revised 2020 Code, 
there is no longer overall evaluation criteria for this aspect of the audit.  The auditors 
have to design the work in relation to the organisation, to provide themselves with 
sufficient assurance to enable them to report. If significant risks are identified then 
additional evidence may be required to follow up those risk areas. 

4.5 The areas of focus for the VFM review this year were: 

 Governance changes as a result of the merger of the MCA and the PTE; 

 Arrangements for managing major capital projects; and  

 Arrangements for the administration of financial and non-financial support to 
public transport operators as a result of the Covid 19 pandemic.  

A separate commentary on the VFM arrangements has to be produced in a newly 
titled Auditor’s Annual Report for 2020/21. There were no matters to report this year.    

4.6 The audit was concluded with the financial accounts being given an unqualified audit 
opinion in September 2021.  The final audit completion letter, now the Auditor’s 
Annual Report, was delayed a further four months because this was the first year of 
the new format.  The report was delivered to the Panel in January 2022. 

4.7 As regards the audit fee this year, again further work had been identified as 
necessary in relation to the impact of Covid-19; going concern and in relation to the 
new revised VFM assessment.  EA also identified an addition to the scale fee that 
they considered necessary as a result of the increase in professional and regulatory 
requirements on external auditors; this they called pricing for quality.   

4.8 The proposed additional fees on top of the scale fees payable were broken down for 
the Panel over the different categories as follows: 

Page 22



5 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

 Pricing for quality     £17,867 

 Additional work on pensions valuation £2,500 

 Additional work for the VFM opinion  £2,500 

4.9 It was disappointing that extra work was needed again this year on the pensions’ 
valuation.  In addition, the additional testing that EY requested from Deloitte, the 
SYPA auditors, resulted in the SYPA charging additional fees to the PTE.  It is hoped 
to work with EY in the coming year to clarify exactly what additional testing is still 
necessary and to minimise any additional work required.   

4.10 The Panel agreed the variations for the pensions’ valuation work and VFM work; 
these now go to the PSAA for final approval as additional work required above the 
scale fees. However, we did not agree the additional fee for “pricing for quality” as 
this is a change to the scale fees and should be referred to the PSAA as the contract 
manager and the body that sets the scale fees.  EY have referred this element to the 
PSAA for consideration. 

4.11 On last year’s fee invoice, we had queried the additional fees charged for the 
pensions’ valuation work undertaken of £2,500. Whilst we understood the reason for 
the additional work, we considered that we could not accept that the PTE was 
responsible for payment for Deloitte’s delay in providing the information needed by 
EY. This was referred to PSAA and the decision was this element was due for 
payment by the PTE.   

5. Risk Management and Corporate Governance   

5.1 Effective risk management processes are central to providing the Board with 
assurance that the organisation is achieving objectives. It is a fundamental element 
of the organisation’s governance framework and system of internal control. The 
Panel review the risk management report including the risk register at each meeting. 
There are currently no risks that do not have either mitigating controls or actions in 
place. 

5.2 During the year it became clear that the number of identified and significant transport 
operational risks being reported was increasing. This was a reflection of the day-to-
day challenges that were emerging as a result of the impact of Covid-19 on BAU and 
future planning and developments.  The Panel agreed it was appropriate to 
undertake a Deep Dive of Operational Transport risks and the two independent 
members undertook to do this. 

5.3 Two deep dives sessions have thus far been completed into Tram, then Bus and 
other Transport matters. Both were very useful and informative in providing 
assurance to the Panel on the management of the key operational risks.  This has 
left outstanding two further areas that warrant consideration to ensure a 
comprehensive review is completed, these are:  

(i) Post-implementation review of the scope of Enhanced Partnership obligations, 
what new risks exist as a result of these (and what old risks no longer apply);  

(ii) Review of our processes and approach to the management of the capital 
programme delivery (funding, approval, award, implementation and outcomes). 

This final review has yet to be arranged. 

Page 23



6 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

5.4 The Risk Management Framework is again part of the 2021/22 annual audit plan for 
review as it forms part of the annual audit opinion.  At the time of writing, the audit 
has not yet concluded. Last year, it was given a significant assurance with some 
improvement required opinion. The audit will consider what progress has been made 
in developing and embedding the framework since last year.  However, it has been 
recognised that in view of Integration with the MCA a new, combined approach to risk 
management is under development and will be implemented in the new financial 
year, therefore, currently this is a WIP. 

5.5 The Panel would have liked to see the conclusion of the work started some 4 years 
ago to improve reporting from the risk register and to complete an assurance map.  
However, further improvements to risk reporting for the PTE have essentially been 
put on hold this year whilst work concentrated on the risk management work stream 
of the Integration project.  The Interim Risk Manager has been working upon 
combining the two risk management processes and registers for the PTE and the 
MCA.  In this transitional phase, the emphasis has been to ensure that all current 
significant risks from the PTE operations are effectively reported through to the 
Group Management Boad for visibility; information and awareness. This combined 
risk reporting is an interim step to the development and implementation of the new 
risk framework for the integrated body.   

5.6 This interim stage and the new framework, should meet one of the Panel’s concerns 
on the escalation route for PTE high rated risks where there appeared to be no 
further mitigating actions available to the PTE alone, to reduce the level of the risk.  
The Panel appreciate that this still may mean that there are no further actions within 
the powers of the combined organisation that can reduce the level of the risk. 
However, it will mean that the full risk picture is visible to the Boad when decisions 
are taken.  

5.7 The risk management framework has been subject to a full review and new risk 
framework designed for the integrated organisation.  The strategic risks of the two 
organisations have been built around the following categories of risk: 

 Policy - relates to the setting of interventions to tackle specific matters to 
developing the strategic objectives of the MCA.  

 Financial - relates to the establishment and maintenance of financial health and 
wellbeing in order that the organisation achieves its strategic and financial 
objectives.   

 Organisational - relates to the structure and makeup of the organisation that is 
designed to deliver the objectives and the corporate plan.  

 Operational - incorporates the delivery of programmes and projects that will meet 
the objectives set for the region.  

 Compliance and Regulation - relates to the obligations the MCA is required to 
adhere to including the upholding of laws, statutes and regulations e.g. 
professional standards, laws relating to ethics, bribery, corruption and fraud.  

 Transport – all operational transport related matters that would have historically 
formed part of the Passenger Transport Executive risk register.   

Page 24



7 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

5.8 High rated risks will be escalated to Group Management Board according to an 
agreed timetable. Included within this report will be material Health & Safety risks 
which are escalated to Group Management Board for visibility, direction and to 
determine the frequency of reporting. Work is now underway to compare the existing 
risks against the business plan for the organisation for 22/23 to ensure any new or 
revised risks are included, to maintain a close link between risk management and the 
purpose and objectives of the organisation. 

5.9 Risks will be regularly reported at a number of different levels throughout the new 
integrated organisation with a full report going to the Mayor and leaders, as the MCA 
Board, annually.  The new system is to be rolled out throughout the organisation after 
1 April, after approval by the MCA Board in July 2022. 

5.10 Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Corporate Governance is a key element for the 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and one upon which EA is required to report. 
One of the roles of an audit committee, as set out in this code, is to provide essential 
support for the approval of the AGS by reviewing governance with reference to the 
Code and ensuring it is embedded across the organisation.   

5.11 The Panel keep track of compliance with the Code by reviewing the overall 
assessment that feeds into the Action Plan each year and the quarterly monitoring of 
work completed against that plan. The Panel is provided with a copy of the full 
compliance assessment report, the resulting annual Action Plan and key quarterly 
reviews for comment before these reports are submitted to Management Board for 
approval.  As the timescale for these reports is often outside of the Panel’s meetings, 
this matter is usually dealt with in correspondence, the updated reports are then on 
the agenda at the next meeting for note. This process ensures that any concerns that 
the Panel may have can be taken into account before the reports are approved.   

6. Internal Audit 

6.1 This is the final year of the initial three-year audit contract with Grant Thornton.  As 
this is a transitional year, in view of the integration programme, it has been agreed 
that the contract should be extended for a further year after which a full tendering 
exercise will be undertaken for the new Integrated body.  

6.2 Progress against the plan has been good with 77% of the plan having been delivered 
by the March meeting.  The final audits are underway and their findings will be 
delivered in the first quarter of the new financial year. 

6.3 The annual group plan for 21/22 had a total of 250 days plus 13 days carried forward 
from the previous year.  This was to cover MCA audits; 6 group audits and then 55 
days for 3 specific PTE audits as follows: 

Joint Audits    PTE Audits (became Group/ Joint audits) 

(i) Core Financial Controls  (i) Grant Claims 

(ii) Risk Management   (ii) Asset Management 

(iii) Governance   (iii) Supplier Resilience 

(iv) Critical IT Controls     

(v) Assessing the Risk of Fraud 

(vi) Integration Programme  

    

Page 25



8 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

6.4 For the PTE audits, the Grants Claims Certification work had nothing to report. In 
view of the integration project and the relevance of the two PTE audits to the wider 
organisation, it was decided that both Asset Management and Supplier Resilience 
audits should become group-wide audits.  As a result, there are no specific PTE 
audits for this financial year as all audits are for the group and will be reported to both 
the Panel and the AS&R Committee. 

6.5 The Panel sought assurance from the Head of Internal Audit that the impact of 
making this change did not mean that the audit cover for the PTE was in any way 
diminished.  The Panel was assured by both IA and officers that this was not the 
case.  For each group audit the review considered both the PTE and the MCA 
processes.  Findings and recommendations are grouped under each organisation 
and require management responses from both organisations. Implementation of all 
recommendations will be followed up as agreed by IA. 

6.6 As part of the mid-year review of the audit plan, it was considered by IA and officers 
that as assurance on the Integration project was already being provided by both 
internal and external bodies, the internal audit in this area, at this time would add no 
value.  The recommendation to the Panel was that this was a review that would be 
better undertaken post implementation and the time should be reallocated to another 
audit that would be value-added.   

6.7 The Panel approved the re-allocation of audit days from the Integration project, 
twenty-four days of audit time, to a VFM review of Community Transport.  This audit 
does not form part of the audit opinion for the year and the results of the review will 
be reported in the next financial year.  

6.8 As a Panel, we must ensure that we monitor progress on the implementation of 
outstanding audit recommendations on to completion.  The Panel reviews a Tracker 
Report, produced by IA, on progress of outstanding recommendations at each 
meeting.  We seek explanations where implementation is overdue or where any 
barriers to implementation have been identified.  At the March meeting there were 
three overdue recommendations which the Panel were assured would be 
implemented by the end of the financial year. 

6.9 This year, the Panel followed up on twenty-four recommendations that had been 
closed at the beginning of the year. The Panel was concerned that in some areas the 
recommendations had been closed because of the length of time they had been 
outstanding and that there may still be issues that needed to be tracked.  This was 
followed up in a review session by the two independents.   

6.10 On review it was found that the majority of the recommendations had indeed been 
overtaken by events and time thus making the implementation redundant. The one 
exception was the recommendations related to the Clean Air Zone where the key 
issues were still very much alive and currently being reconsidered. The Panel 
received reassurance that it had been appropriate to close these recommendations 
at the time but that where risks remained for the organisation, these were now 
included in the risk register. 

6.11 The Audit Opinion for the year, we are advised by IA will be issued by the time of the 
next meeting in May, subject to finalising the remaining Core audits.  

 

Page 26



9 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

7. Governance and Integration     

7.1 The decision to formally integrate the PTE and the MCA was made to ensure greater 
political oversight and involvement in decision-making over passenger transport 
services in South Yorkshire. Integration as a new area of risk to the organisation was 
added to the risk register this year, when it became a live and on-going project.  

7.2 The timing of this work presented an additional risk to the organisation coming as it 
did whilst the business was balancing maintaining BAU alongside managing the 
impact of Covid and the Covid restrictions.  This was closely monitored as a new, 
high rated risk.  Oversight of the Integration project governance arrangements and 
their effective working became a new responsibility for the Panel.  

7.3 The Integration lead and the Project Manager attend each meeting to provide 
progress reports on the Project to date and any emerging issues as they arise. 
Regular reports include such areas as progress against the plan to meet critical 
milestones; slippage against the plan and any change requests; budget update; staff 
engagement risk review and any emerging issues.  

7.4 The legislative route to complete the integration is under discussion with DLUHC as 
to the timing of the required Order of Parliament that will enable the two bodies to 
formally merge. We now understand that this cannot happen by the 1 April start date 
that has been planned. The timescale of the legal integration will depend upon 
DLUHC securing parliamentary time to enact the order.  Until that point the PTE and 
the MCA legally retain independent identities and two separate sets of accounts will 
be required but the plan is that the two bodies will operate as one organisation as 
from 1 April.   

7.5 The project remains within the budget set and a final budget report will be produced 
at the end of the financial year.  A programme closure plan has been developed to 
ensure the project is closed in a controlled way with a final lesson learnt report being 
produced.  

7.6 The Programme Board have identified and endorsed several projects required to 
drive the longer-term benefits that were aimed to be achieved from integration.  
These projects are:   

 Digital Transformation; 

 Single Intranet; 

 Data Control and IT harmonised working; 

 Business Process alignment 

 Corporate Website 

 Organisation development priorities and culture 

7.7 These projects will be monitored through the normal project governance 
arrangements and overseen by Management Board as part of business-as-usual.  As 
part of the closure of the Integration project, the risks remaining from each of the 
workstreams will be mapped to the new projects established to drive the longer-term 
benefits or to the relevant business as usual areas. The overall programme risks will 
be reviewed and mapped against the corporate risk register where there are still 
relevant. 

 

Page 27



10 
A&RC Chair’s Report 2021/22 

8. Health and Safety Reporting 

8.1 This has now become a standard item on the Panel’s agenda for the PTE. The 
quarterly reports record an analysis of accidents and incidents, crime and disorder by 
location including near misses.  This is being further enhanced to make it 
comprehensive across transport operations by similar data being provided by 
operators - from SYSL for tram and from First and Stagecoach for bus operations.  

8.2 The report enables the Panel to be kept up to date on the key H&S risks that have 
been identified, their assessment, control and/ or resolution and to monitor any 
emerging risks to the business presented by H&S issues.   

8.3 There have been no major incidents to report in-year and of the 28 RIDDOR cases in 
the calendar year, 2 have resulted in claims being made.  The statistics also show 
that there has been an increase in the crime & disorder incidents in interchanges. An 
action plan is under development, following consultation with the Travelsafe 
Partnership and interchange security teams.  These types of incidents have been 
successfully managed by joint action previously.  

 

9. A&RC Self-Assessment of Effectiveness  

9.1 A well-functioning Audit & Risk Committee plays a pivotal role in ensuring that 
organisations function according to good governance, apply appropriate accounting 
and auditing standards and adopt appropriate risk management arrangements. It is 
good practice for the Committee to assess how effective it has been in the work it 
has undertaken during the year.   

9.2 In view of the changes that have been made to the governance arrangements and 
membership of the Panel, it was decided that it would not be useful to do a review 
this year until the future role of the Panel had been agreed. 

10.  Looking Forward 

10.1 In terms of our priorities for the coming year, this will depend upon when the PTE 
dissolution order can be laid and any role changes agreed with the AS&RC once the 
PTE is officially dissolved.   

10.2 At the moment there is no clear timetable for this to happen as the order needs 
parliamentary time which is not available before 1 April.   

10.3 Whilst the PTE remains a legal entity, we will work to our current ToRs to ensure that 
a good governance is maintained and that the basic processes of financial reporting, 
internal control and risk reporting are in place and operating effectively. During this 
time, the Panel will continue to draw to the attention of the AS&RC any matters of 
concern. 

29 April 2022 
   

Page 28



 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

06 June 2022 
 

Risk Management Report 
 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public?    No 
  
Purpose of this report: 
 

                   Monitoring/Assurance 
 

Funding Stream:                          Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                                                       No        
 
Has it been included on the Forward Plan?                     Not a Key Decision 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Liz Morris, Interim Risk Manager 
Liz.morris@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 

Executive Summary: 
This paper provides an update on the corporate risks of the Mayoral Combined Authority 
(MCA), which have been devised and reviewed over the preceding months.  Management 
Board have had the opportunity to re-consider the Corporate Risk Register again in May 
2022.  The latest version of the Corporate Risk Register is attached as Appendix A. 
 
This paper also provides the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee with an update on the 
risk management development activity, which has been progressing well to develop initial 
risk registers at a team/business plan level.  
 
This paper also provides the ASRC with a narrative summary setting out key activity the 
MCA is taking against the high and medium/high corporate risks facing the MCA, the closed 
risk and the risk proposed for closure next month. 

 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire? 
Effective risk management is a key principle of good governance and decision making, 
which enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and 
efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South 
Yorkshire. 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 11

mailto:Liz.morris@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


Recommendations:   
In line with the ASRC Work Plan, this paper provides the Risk Management Report for 
consideration at the June 2022 meeting.  ASRC members are asked to note the updated 
position and to raise any questions that are considered necessary.   
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Not applicable  
  
1. Background  
1.1 Following a full internal Management Board review and an Internal Audit Report in 

2020, the Risk Management Framework of the MCA was revised and refreshed.  The 
ASRC endorsed the revised policy and process in October 2020 and, following their 
recommendation, it was approved and adopted by the MCA at their meeting in 
November 2020. 
 
Risk Management documentation and processes have been refreshed again, over 
the latter months of 2021, as part of the Integration to bring together the MCA and the 
PTE.  A refreshed Risk Management Framework document has been devised taking 
account of the good practice of both the PTE and MCA, comparable organisations 
and risk management standards and guidelines.  ASRC members have commented 
and independent members have made specific contributions and recommendations 
on the content to reach the final version, which ASRC agreed in March 2022.  
 
In parallel, the Corporate Risk Register has been developed with senior leaders and 
key employees.  In January 2022, the ASRC agreed to stand down the previous MCA 
risk registers and utilise the revised format and content.  The updated version is 
included as Appendix A to this paper.   

  
2. 
2.1 

Risk Management Development  
The MCA risk management development journey has progressed at pace and since 
the last ASRC meeting workshops have been planned and held with business plan 
owners and respective members of the team.  The workshops include a presentation 
on the core principles of risk management to help generate discussion, socialisation 
of the Risk Management Framework and a conversation about what that means for 
the directorate, managers and teams.  
 
The workshops are then focused on a Control, Risk Self-Assessment exercise to 
identify, assess and evaluate risks within the team and against the business plan 
deliverables.  The deliverables, risks which arose in the Integration Programme 
workstreams, 4Risk and the old MCA risk registers are being considered in the 
planning, discussion and development of the team/business plan risk registers, the 
output of the workshops.  This activity is being delivered to implement the Framework, 
develop the MCA risk profile and build consistency of approach across the MCA.   
 
At the point of writing this paper, proposals are in place to deliver 21 workshops, 14 
have been concluded and risk registers prepared, six are diarised and one is to be 
booked.  Progress is plotted in the following table and pie chart: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



Risk Management Development – Team level Volume 

Scoping 1 

Workshop booked 6 

Workshop Delivered and Draft Risk Register Issued 5 

Agreed Final Risk Register 9 

 

 
 
Additionally, testing of a refreshed version of the 4Risk system is taking place and is 
intended to create a central repository for risks, enhance risk reporting and 
functionality and greater reporting in a dashboard style to create additional visual 
representation.  In the interim, and as part of our testing data and graphics have been 
extracted from the test system and manually adapted to create the visual depiction in 
this paper and to help address a request from ASRC members. 
 
 
Visual Summary  

2.2 The graphs and heatmap below provide a visual summary of the corporate risks.   
 
Bar Chart 
The following bar chart demonstrates the volume of risks and respective ratings by 
strategic group, the categories established for reporting purposes.  The group with the 
greatest volume of risk is Policy.  The group with the greatest volume of high-level risks 
is Transport.  Commissioned Operations and Delivery contains two medium/high risks 
and Organisational and Policy one medium/high risk is contained in each. Further 
information relating to the high and medium/high risks is recorded in section 3 of this 
paper. 

5%

28%

24%

43%

Risk Register Development

Scoping

Workshop booked

Draft Risk Register

Final Risk Register

Page 31



 

 
 
The following graph demonstrates the spread of corporate risks by current risk score.  

  
 
The following graph demonstrates the risks and where they reside within the 
directorates of the MCA.  

 
  

 
 
 

0.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00 5.00 6.00

Commissioned Operations & Delivery

Financial

Legal Compliance & Regulation

Operational Transport

Organisational

Policy

Corporate Risks by Strategic Group/Category

Low Medium Med/High High

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Low Medium Med/High High

Corporate Risks by Current Score 

0.00 2.00 4.00 6.00 8.00 10.00

Business & Skills

Deputy Chief Executives

Finance & Investment

Infrastructure & Place

Corporate Risks by Directorate

Low Medium Med/High High

Page 32



 
 

Heat Map 
The following heat map provides a visual representation of the position of the risks 
within the probability and impact scoring grid.  There are two high level risks and four 
medium/high.  Further information is recorded within section 3 below.   
 

5. Critical 
1 3 2 2  

4. Serious 
1 1 2   

3. Moderate  2 1   

2. Minor 
1 3    

1. Immaterial    1  

  1. Highly 
Unlikely 

2. 
Unlikely 

3. Possible 4. Probable 
5. Highly 
Probable 

 

  
The changes to the current risk score, since the last report, are indicated in the 
following heat map: 

5. Critical 
     

4. Serious 
+1 -1    

3. Moderate 
     

2. Minor 
     

1. Immaterial  -1    

  1. Highly 
Unlikely 

2. 
Unlikely 

3. Possible 4. Probable 
5. Highly 
Probable 

  

  
3 Corporate Risk Reporting 

 
3.1 Detailed risk reporting below presents an update against the high and medium/high 

risks and the risks that have been closed and proposed for closure shortly.   
  

Risk #003 Mayoral Election – Propose to Close  
The activity and action to deliver the election has concluded and a new Mayor 
elected.  The risk is being held until 30th June 2022 and the risk will be closed 
thereafter as it becomes spent. 
 

 Risk #008 Recovery Funding 
Bus and light rail recovery funding is in place and has recently been confirmed to 4th 
October 2022.  Confirmation of the total amount allocated to SYMCA has been 
received and stands at £5,656,487. This includes an allocation for Light Rail of 
£4,000,000.  Engagement with operators continues to ensure that current services 
remain protected between now and 4th October and some additional support funding 

Page 33



has been proposed of up to £1.9m to ensure service stability whilst the network 
review takes place to agree the post-October network. 
 
Whilst planning assumptions remain based on worst-case scenario, there is some 
indication that operators are slightly more optimistic on patronage recovery between 
now and the end of the funding period.  However, we should still work on the 
assumption that there is insufficient revenue funding to cover all reductions or 
service losses being proposed and prioritisation must take place regarding what is 
protected.  The decisions will clearly have implications on the revenue budget for 
2023-24 and the amount of tendered services funding required therein. 
 
Risks #009 and #010 Enhanced Partnership 
Future funding for bus has been linked to the development and implementation of the 
Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP), which was approved by the Transport and 
the Environment Board for submission to the DfT on 29 October 2021.  Following a 
28-day consultation period with bus operators and a six-week period of public 
consultation in January and February 2022, the BSIP was confirmed as SYMCA’s 
Enhanced Partnership Plan for buses.  This document sets out the region’s long-
term ambitions for the bus network and was informed by the recommendations from 
the Bus Review.   
 
In April 2022, Government confirmed its decision not to award BSIP funding to South 
Yorkshire.  Despite this South Yorkshire has demonstrated its commitment to the 
ambitions, by progressing the Enhanced Partnership arrangements against the 
original timescales.  On 21 March 2022, the MCA approved the start of a Statutory 
Enhanced Partnership and making an Enhanced Partnership Scheme with effect 
from 1 April 2022.   
 

Work on establishing and implementing the Enhanced Partnership Board, the 
Enhanced Partnership Forum and supporting systems is progressing at pace, with 
Terms of Reference and meeting cycles to be confirmed.  The first Enhanced 
Partnership Board will meet prior to 30 June 2022. 
 
In parallel, capital funding sources to support the development of the Enhanced 
Partnership Plan are being formalised (e.g. CRSTS) or actively explored (e.g. LUF). 
 
Risk #011 Tram Services 
Work is ongoing to develop options for the end of the existing tram concession as 
part of the Light Rail Development Programme, which has been established.  The 
interim Programme Director is progressing the delivery programme through the 
supporting programme governance structure.  The MCA Chief Executive and a small 
group of senior leaders and key employees are meeting every four weeks to discuss 
and drive progress forward on this major MCA programme and key risk area. 
 
Tram Sustainability and Asset Renewal Plans, aligned to medium and long-term 
needs, continue to be developed and will be subject to the MCA assurance and 
decision-making process. 
 
An assessment of future operating model options (after the concession end) has now 
been completed, with the intention to submit a paper to the July 2022 MCA Board 
seeking approval of a preferred operating model.  Resource and external 
procurement mobilisation are progressing and need to continue at pace to ensure we 
achieve the time-critical milestones of this major programme and manage the 
associated risks.  It is worth noting, the implementation of the contents of the 

Page 34



programme will take several years to conclude.  Financial reporting to the Board has 
flagged growing concern around the MCA’s exposure to the tram’s operating 
performance from 2024 onwards. 
 
Risk #015 Cyber Security  
Work is ongoing to achieve Cyber Essentials Accreditation and development of 
internal reporting.  The actions recorded to manage the risk were due in April 2022 
and are outstanding.  In part this is due to the resource levels and to the need to 
assess and take action to migrate any dated legacy systems onto supported 
technology.  There are a small number of systems, which are currently in use which 
cannot be supported, and these are subject to further assessment.  Where it is 
determined that ii is not possible to migrate, due to the dated programming of 
specific systems, decisions need to be made on how to progress through purchase 
of new and supported systems.  This will take time to carry out.   
 
Risk #016 Integration – Closed  
This risk was focused on the Integration Programme and following the actual 
integration on 1st April 2022 this risk has now been closed.  Any residual action and 
activity will be aligned to Risk #013 Organisational Design.  Integration workstream 
risks are being considered, and where appropriate, aligned to the respective team 
risk register. 

  
 Financial risks #018 Financial Health, #019 Borrowing and #020 Supply Chain 
 As with other private and public bodies the MCA remains sensitive to macro factors 

in its operating environment.  
 
The impact of the pandemic and societal behavioural changes continues to impact 
on the organisation.  With patronage levels on the public transport network still below 
commercial sustainability levels the organisation is coming under sustained pressure 
to use its financial resource to sustain at risk services.  Whilst government support is 
now committed to 4th October 2022 the quantum is insufficient to maintain the 
existing network and services in the longer term.  Managing a finite body of reserves 
to mitigate immediate and medium-term risk remains a challenge with few definite 
planning assumptions. 
 
Post-pandemic behavioural changes continue to impact upon income streams. 
Rental returns from space at the interchanges and at the AMPTC continue to be 
subdued, reducing un-restricted income.  These issues have been budgeted for, with 
shortfalls being offset by use of reserves.  In the longer-term this practice will be 
unsustainable.   
 
Over the last quarter the impact of the inflationary environment has become clearer 
as a key risk.  In particular, the cost of buying back the existing portfolio of bus 
tendered services is now expected to be considerably more than current values, 
whilst inflationary risk around the cost of utilities has crystallised with gas and 
electricity costs continuing to escalate across the MCA’s estate.  This cost escalation 
will impact upon policy choices and diminish the MCA’s wider financial resilience to 
macro sustainability risks. 
 
Inflationary pressures within the capital programme are also impacting the pace of 
delivery, with some projects now exceeding their cost envelope despite existing 
contingency and risk allocations.  Where costs cannot be met from other sources re-
design and cost-reengineering is required.  Officers are working with scheme 
delivery agents and funding bodies to identify mitigations. 

Page 35



 
 The MCA has now received borrowing powers following the successful passage of 

legislation through Parliament.  Application of these powers will be subject to a 
consultation launched by Government on the Capital Framework, and in particular 
the approach to providing for debt repayments.  This consultation is of importance to 
the MCA’s emerging Investment Strategy, and the MCA and partners have made 
representation to Government on proposals. We await the response from 
Government on the outcome of the consultation. 
 

 Risk #021 Adult Education Budget  
A medium high-level risk continues to be reported into the ASRC, this relates to the 
Adult Education Budget (AEB).  Analysis of provider performance data, at the mid-
year point has identified underperformance against each of the four procured AEB 
lots.  This is still the case at the end of April, Provider Funding Return Period R09, 
which is three month following the mid-year point.  This has led to the maintenance 
of the risk focused on provider delivery at the end of the academic year failing to 
achieve the intended benefits for South Yorkshire and its people.   
 
Performance monitoring visits continue to take place and self-declared provider 
projections obtained to gain a clear understanding of the position, at a provider and 
then programme level, in order to define appropriate mitigation action to address the 
risk prior to the academic year end.  Proposals for allocating growth funding have 
recently been made to senior leaders and agreed in principle.   
 
Additionally, an evaluation exercise is yet to be commissioned, which is intended to 
support the learning of lessons and lead to enhancements to existing processes, 
which are to be applied for the future.   
 
A specific AEB risk register is currently being developed with colleagues from 
multiple teams across the business.  A Skills based risk register will also be 
developed as the two are inextricably linked and aims to create a full risk profile for 
this important area of MCA business.  
 
Furthermore, additional interim resource has been secured to support this 
workstream, whilst further resource is in the process of being recruited. 
 

4. Consultation on Proposal  
  
4.1 Not applicable 

 
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision:   
  
5.1 Not applicable 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no specific financial risk implications however, failure to effectively 

manage risk may have significant financial and reputational impact and for the MCA. 
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
7.1 There are no legal implications as a result of this report. 
  

 

Page 36



8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no human resources implications as a result of this report. 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of this report. 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 There are no climate change implications as a result of this report. 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 There are no ICT implications as a result of this report. 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice 

 
12.1 There are no communications or marketing implications as result of this report. 
  
List of Appendices Included 
A Corporate Risk Register  
   

Background Papers: 
n/a 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

Risk 

Ref.

Date 

Raised

Category Owner Probability

1 - 5

Low - High 

Impact

1 - 5

Low to High

Risk Score Existing Controls  Probability 

1 - 5

Low to High

Impact

1 - 5

Low to High

Risk Score Action Due date 

00/00/00

001 11.01.22 Policy Ruth Adams 3 5 15 a. Engaging with Government officials to shape proposed policy priorities and shifts.

b. Ongoing horizon scanning- to monitor the situation and respond quickly.

c.  Membership of the M10 network and knowledge sharing with other CAs.

d. The Devolution White Paper was published in January 2022 and in March a presentation to the 

MCA took place. 

2 5 10 a. The Levelling up and Regeneration Bill has been published in May 2022, this 

provides the legislative changes to facilitate implementation of the Levelling Up 

White Paper.  A presentation on likely impact is to be made to the MCA in  July 

2022.

a. 31.07.22

002 11.01.22 Policy Ruth Adams 3 5 15 a. Development and agreement of the Investment Strategy with the four LAs.

b. In the process of securing the borrowing powers to maximise funding.

c. The corporate policy is embedded to include its guardianship of the SEP.

d. Closer monitoring of the SEP outcomes, the Corporate Plan outcomes and development and 

delivery of the Business Planning framework.  

e. Business plans are in place for 2022-23 setting out each team's contribution to delivery of the 

SEP.  

2 5 10 a. The Business Planning process has resulted in deliverables being defined within 

each plan, reviews are taking place during quarter 1.    

b.

a. 01.07.22 

003 11.01.22 Legal Compliance 

and Regulation

Dave Smith 3 5 15 a. An Elections Manager has been recruited to deliver the election process effectively.

b. Lessons learned events carried out with election managers in the four constituent LAs and 

additional control added to the process.

c. A contractor appointed to print and issue the election booklet, a requirement of the legislation.  

d. QC call off support on standby should it be needed.

e. Election level risk register in place. 

2 5 10 a. Hold until 30.06.22, proposed closure thereafter due to the risk being spent. a. 30.06.22

004 11.01.22 Policy Ruth Adams 4 2 8 a. Government has clarified the role of LEPs in MCAs and this aligns well with the integrated model 

of the SY MCA and LEP

b. We have built into our thematic boards members from the private sector to ensure that we 

maintain their insight to influence our role and activity to meet the needs of business and the 

communities we serve.  

c.  An initial paper, following the publication of the LEP review, has been made to the LEP in May 

2022. 

4 1 4 a. A presentation has been made to the LEP in May, another is to be made to the 

MCA in June 2022 with further papers being prepared and reported to both the LEP 

& MCA in July 2022. 

LEP considered the review in May and the MCA will do so in June - to go back 

through the reporting cycle in July (MCA & LEP)

22.07.22

005 11.01.22 Policy Jim Dillon 3 4 12 a. development of inclusion plan setting out clear actions with owners and resource levels to take 

forward the policy objective as one.

b. Inclusion has been hard wired into project development through business case processes.

c. agreeing a set of eligibility conditions (by end of March 22)and principles for an employer's 

charter,  by 31 March 2022, which will become part of the performance monitoring 

2 2 4 a. A new Skills Strategy, led by the Business & Skills team, is being written in 

association with Corporate Policy.  

a. 31.08.22

006 11.01.22 Policy Martin Swales 3 5 15 a. The MCA strategy requires that the Net Zero response runs through our core programmes.  

Consequently, we are building de-carbonisation into allocation requirements for the Renewal 

Fund.

b. Working with partners / stakeholders to develop projects that take account of de-carbonisation.  

For CRSTS schemes our submissions and proposals are being scrutinised by Government to ensure 

sustainability is demonstrated, which is a core aspect of the programme.  

3 4 12 a. We are actively working with Sheffield University to develop regional data to 

understand the impact of our (& partners) programmes and projects to understand 

the current position and baseline. 

b. The most impactful interventions to focus the renewal fund upon are being 

determined through our work with partners e.g. should we carry out additional tree 

planting and promotion and usage of green power.

c. Integrating our response to net zero and climate emergency into investment 

decision making processes.   

01.04.23

007 11.01.22 Commissioned 

Operations and 

Delivery

Martin Swales 4 5 20 a.  Actions to implement the recommendations of the recent independent BPR implemented 

through the refreshed Assurance Framework, including work to establish a feasibility/ 

development fund.  

b. Immediate resource planning for the next stage submission of CRSTS, deadline January 2022.

c. Working with Finance to support LAs in developing and submitting project proposals efficiently 

for CRSTS by April 2022 (to note CRSTS proposals are made up of 80-100 individual projects).

3 5 15 a. Continue to work with Finance to LA submissions to create a pipeline of activity.

b. Additional team members to support the work will be requested through the 

annual business planning process.

c. Agreement reached with the MCA for disbursal of the CRSTS revenue grant

01.04.23

008 11.01.22 Transport  Steve Edwards 5 5 25 a. Ongoing dialogue with officials and ministers to shape the existing and future proposals.

b. Recovery funding secured until October 2022 for operators and LA's; £5,656,487 confirmed for 

SYMCA (£4m for tram)

c. Continue payment of concessions at pre-COVID rates until April 2022

d. Adjustments to pre-COVID rates proportionate to network mileage to allow underspend to be 

retained and potentially used for future network protection.

e. Service change/consultation process in place with operators to ensure early notice of potential 

changes.

f. Maintenance of Protection of Priority Services Reserve to support short-term mitigations

g. Stakeholder engagement on likely service changes and prioritisation of available resource

4 5 20 a. Continue to press government for clarity on future funding arrangements

b. Working with bus operators to undertake network review and proposed 

tendered service retentions for October 2022.

c. Engaging with SYSL on future tram service pattern from October 2022.

d. Rolling patronage forecast  to inform likely service levels 

e. Agree future arrangements for a return to concessionary payments (based on 

actuals) and opportunity to recycle any underspend to support services

f. Recommend use of reserves to protect services between April and October

02.10.22

009 11.01.22 Transport Steve Edwards 3 5 15 a. Operators and key stakeholders have been engaged through the development of the BSIP 

b. Consultation process concluded in February 2022 covering operators, key stakeholders and 

public

c. Formally started Enhanced Partnerships on 01 April 2022 following MCA approval on 21 March 

2022

d. Formal notice of the start of the EP issued and published on the website

1 4 4 a. EP scheme implementation plan being delivered supported by a milestone plan

b. EP Governance arrangements being finalised with an EP forum, EP Development 

group and EP Operating Group and EP Board

c. EP Board meetings are being scheduled through Democratic Services and other 

supporting meetings schedules will follow.

30.06.22

010 11.01.22 Transport Steve Edwards 3 5 15 a. EP scheme developed based on available funding

b. Stakeholder comms setting expectations around deliverable improvements shared and 

approved (MCA/TEB/STOB)

c. Ability to add/amend EP Scheme(s) if further funding becomes available.

d. DfT confirmation of CRSTS bus related schemes, some other schemes still subject to discussion. 

Regular engagement with DfT to formalise CRSTS arrangements.

e. ZEBRA grant award for 27 EV buses confirmed by the DfT in March 2022

3 3 9 a. Formal confirmation from DfT of CRSTS grant award and grant award to start 

work on schemes that can support bus improvement

b. Continue to lobby DfT officials/ministers for funding support

c. Explore alternative funding sources as they become available (e.g. LUF, ZEBRA)

d. Finalisation of terms of reference for the EP Board and any supporting groups 

that will help drive the further development of EP Schemes and to pro-actively seek 

supporting funding sources against the region's priorities for bus

31.12.22

011 11.01.22 Transport Steve Edwards 5 5 25 a. Appointment of an Interim Programme Director (IPD)- Light Rail Transport Operation.                          

b. Light Rail Development Programme established and key milestones identified

c. Governance arrangements established to oversee the programme of work (Concession end, 

Financial Sustainability, Asset Renewal and Future Vision)

d. Reporting and engagement plan established encompassing Management Board, SY Chief Execs, 

TEB and MCA

e. Tram Project Reserve created to support readiness activity.

d. Analysis of options for concession end completed for consideration by the MCA

4 5 20 a. Briefing to key stakeholders on options and risks/benefits

b. Prepare a paper on options for consideration by MCA - Jul-22

01.08.22

012 11.01.22 Legal Compliance 

and Regulation

Steve 

Davenport

2 5 10 a. Health and safety policy and procedures in place and audited by independent H&S advisor.

b. Training provided to all staff.

c. Appropriate maintenance contracts in place to undertake fabric and M&E repairs and 

inspections as required.

d. Monitoring of incidents and near misses undertaken, quarterly reports presented to 

Management Board and the ASRC.

e. Health and Safety in Transport Deep Dive with independent members of ASRC. 

1 5 5 a. Job descriptions will be amended to ensure role responsibilities are set out to 

strengthen MCA controls.

31.07.22

013 11.01.22 Organisational Ruth Adams 3 3 9 a. structure developed, agreed and communicated.

b. operating model to shape internal responsibilities and ways of working agreed and 

communicated

c. Corporate Plan being updated and revised to provide clarity of outcomes, priorities and 

accountabilities

d. Annual business planning cycle will consider any resourcing gaps or risk areas

e. Management development has commenced with two sessions having taken place to May 2022.   

2 2 4 a. Work on corporate culture and values in process of being designed and delivered

b. Work on a Management Offer outlined to the organisation will be implemented 

and monitored.

c. 

31.03.23

Net Zero, Sustainability/ Climate Change

Inability to galvanise the required level of support, 

consensus and leadership across the region, from our 

partners and stakeholders both private and public, leads to a 

fragmented approach, which results in failing to achieve the 

net zero target, by 2040.  

Organisational Design

The organisational transformation linked to the integration 

of the MCA and PTE organisations, leads to confusion in the 

structure and ways of working, resulting in inability to 

deliver the outcomes outlined in the  economic plan and in 

the Corporate Plan

Recovery Funding and Low Patronage

Reduced/terminated recovery funding from central 

government and lower levels of patronage results in an 

unviable transport system.

Enhanced Partnership

Failing to agree an Enhanced Partnership with bus operators 

and stakeholders leading to the withdrawal of DfT funding. 

Enhanced Partnership

Insufficient funding to deliver meaningful service 

improvements through Enhanced Partnership/BSIP 

Tram Services

Failing to reach a timely agreement on the future operating 

model for tram services beyond the current operating 

concession exposes the MCA to  operational transport risks 

resulting in financial and  capability and capacity pressures. 

Health and Safety

A major accident or injury occurs involving SYMCA assets 

and / or people, leads to regulator intervention, resulting in 

liability and adverse impact on the workforce, budgets and 

reputation of the MCA.

Transport

The award of the CRSTS programme funding will provide 

related regional capital funds for five years from April 2022 

and will be closely monitored by DfT.  The Risk is that the 

capacity in the region may be insufficient to deliver 

extensive projects in the programme within timescale, with 

potential damage to the reputation of the MCA and Mayor.    

Inclusion 

Dispersed strategic level ownership of the Inclusion policy 

objective, leads to drift in direction, resulting in delayed 

and/or ineffectual delivery mechanisms and inefficient use 

of resources. 

Growth

The LEP Review changes the role of the LEP, in a way that 

hinders the MCA Growth imperative, resulting in the policy 

objective and strategy being undermined.

Strategic Economic Plan 

We lose focus on delivering the SEP, and its direction of 

travel to regenerate the economy, as a consequence of 

resource levels, external and unanticipated pressures.

Appendix A

Mayoral Election

We fail to deliver the election in accordance with the 

legislation, leading to a potential legal challenge of the 

result, concluding in lack of public confidence in it and 

reputational damage.

Risk Description

Policy Change

Changes to the political and policy operating environment, 

lead to a shift in regional priorities, resulting in disruption to 

the prospects of achieving our mission e.g. Devolution White 

Paper or Mayoral Election.   

Pre-response assessment (inherent) Current risk assessment (residual)

P
age 39



014 11.01.22 Organisational Ruth Adams 2 3 6 a. Corporate Plan being updated and revised to provide clarity of outcomes, priorities and 

accountabilities and a corporate business plan / resource plan in development to match resources 

to priorities. 

b. Introduction of a HR Business Partnering approach to work closely with teams to enable early 

identification of emerging risks or issues in capacity. 

c. Workforce data reported to Management Board and employee engagement surveys in place to 

provide feedback from the workforce 

1 2 2 a. Work on alternative approaches to recruitment to secure talent into the 

organisation to be developed and actions agreed.

b. Develop the Resource Strategy and approaches to build a pipeline of employees 

for the mid to long term.

c. Utilisation of the MCA entitled Apprenticeship Levy to be considered for growing 

and energising the resource pool for the future.  

a. 31.03.23

b. 31.03.23

c. 30.09.22

015 11.01.22 Organisational Ruth Adams 5 5 2500% a. Anti-virus software, updated hourly, installed across all infrastructure. 

b. Mimecast, Advanced Threat Protection, installed and always evolving to address current 

threats, covers email filtering to identify and block impersonators and filtering attachments for 

abnormalities for the IT team to check prior to release.  

c. Web-filtering to restrict and prohibit unauthorised access and data loss.

d. An IT Policy exists and is updated as necessary, last updated in 2021. 

e. Password policy exists implementing good practice to build strong access controls including 

multi-factor authentication. 

f. Activity monitoring takes place including how people access the system.  

g. Phishing attacks, internal testing takes place.

h. Software patching takes place to ensure software updates are carried out.

i. Annual outsourced penetration testing, which is part of the Cyber Essentials requirements.

j. Physical security enhancements including restricting a non-employee plugging a laptop into MCA 

network.   

3 5 15 a. Achieve Cyber Essentials accreditation.  

b. Enhance Management Board reporting of attacks and their management. 

c. Enhance employee awareness and reporting of current threat types, volume and 

attacks prohibited.  

d. Further analysis and work to be undertaken to address utilised dated legacy 

systems - required as a milestone towards achieving Cyber Essentials Accreditation.

a. 01.04.22

b. 01.04.22

c. 01.04.22

d. 31.09.22

016 11.01.22 Organisational Ruth Adams 3 3 9 a. Programme Structures applied including Senior Responsible Officer, Programme Manager and 

establishment of leads for individual strands.

b. Programme, work package monitoring takes place and reporting is in place including change 

management, highlight reports and risks and issues logs presented to a Programme Board.

c. An independently appointed strategic partner supported the development of the programme 

and on-going independent check and challenge is in place at the Programme Board

d. Oversight and scrutiny of the programme is enhanced as programme papers are presented to 

the ASRC. 

e. Review of existing processes that will need to continue as the order to formally dissolve the PTE 

and transfer associated powers and  responsibilities to the MCA is delayed has taken place. 

2 1 2 Closed 20.05.22

017 11.01.22 Financial Gareth Sutton 3 3 9 a. An internal cross discipline team is shaping the strategy through work with internal and external 

colleagues 

b. A four point engagement plan is underway with external partners 

c. The MCA has authorised acceptance of a borrowing cap and consents to the tabling of 

legislation which is now progressing through Parliament

d. An interim plan has been designed setting our core principles, indicative investment sequencing, 

with resource made available to deliver investment plans and delivery ready investments

e. The outcomes of the BPR workstream and steering group are beginning to be folded into the 

overall Strategy

2 3 6 a. The interim plan was formally adopted by Board in March and work continues.

b. Work will continue to develop Place Based Investment Plans and 

Transformational Plans

c. Work will continue on the operationalisation of the Plans, including borrowing 

principles

d. Negotiation with HM Treasury on the borrowing cap for financial year 2022/23 

has commenced                                                                                                            e. 

Proposals around the use of new Shared Prosperity Funding are being aligned to 

Investment Strategy activity                                                                                    f. Work 

is underway to make new connections with institutional investors

a-d. 31.07.22

018 11.01.22 Financial Gareth Sutton 3 5 15 a. The MCA Group undertakes annual integrated business and budget planning to ensure resource 

is effectively aligned to priorities 

b. The MCA Group undertakes cyclical budget monitoring to identify financial performance 

allowing for the reallocation of resource mid-year 

c. The MCA has undertaken a significant reserve refresh re-deploying resource to known risks and 

holding a prudent amount of resource to mitigate financial shock 

d. The MCA reports frequently to the Board and ensures partners remain apprised on financial 

matters through the Directors of Finance Group and Member budget engagement sessions 

2 4 8 a. The MCA continues to lobby government for ongoing financial support to the 

public transport network alongside other peer authorities 

b. The MCA continues to lobby government for the continuation of capacity funding 

for core activity alongside other peer authorities 

c. The MCA's developing Investment Strategy is couched within the context of the 

wider funding environment 

d. The MCA has completed business planning exercise for the new financial year 

and will adjust over quarter 1 to take account of the outturn position      e. Key 

medium-term risk around the future exposure to tram performance is being 

considered through the tram workstream                                                            f. Close 

attention is being paid to inflationary pressures and the impact on capital and 

revenue resource. Government have been engaged on capital funding pressures 

with in-programme flexibilities sought to enable the region to manage issues 

efficiently.

a-f. 30.06.22

019 11.01.22 Financial Gareth Sutton 2 3 6 a. The MCA sets an Annual Treasury Management Strategy that is scrutinised by the Audit, 

Standards & Risk Committee and approved by Board. This governs its approach to borrowing and 

debt 

b. The MCA ensures it has access to professional support via a contracted arrangement with SCC 

and Link Treasury Advisors, and internally through officers with appropriate qualifications 

c. The MCA reports on its Treasury performance to Audit, Standards & Risk Committee and Board 

through a forward, backward and mid-year review 

d. The MCA has developed good working relationships with HM Treasury officers and negotiated 

an initial borrowing cap.                                                                           

e. The SY Directors of Finance Group has developed a number of principles around borrowing for 

the Investment Strategy activity that will need to be ratified by the Board.

f. 

2 2 4 a. The MCA is shaping its approach to its new borrowing vires through the 

Investment Strategy work

b. The MCA has engaged with HM Treasury to begin its second round of borrowing 

cap negotiations 

c. The MCA has re-set the role of SCC in supporting its borrowing activity                                                                                                                                                     

d. The MCA has engaged government on its latest Capital Financing Framework 

consultation                                                                                                                e. The 

MCA will be presented with borrowing principles for the Investment Strategy in July                              

31.07.22

020 11.01.22 Financial Gareth Sutton 3 3 9 a. MCA seeks to ensure a broad supplier basis through open market competition 

b. The MCA has access to a number of broad framework agreements to call off, in a timely fashion 

c. The MCA conducts pre-contract financial health due-diligence on major contracts including  

seeking details of associated sub-contracting and proportion of delivery / contract. 

d. The MCA holds a prudent level of reserves to mitigate financial shock.

e. Standard Supplier Questionnaire completed by potential suppliers as part of the procurement 

process to ensure consistency of procurement and information provided by bidders.  Part of it is 

backward facing seeking assurance over previous experience and therefore quality, competency 

and financial health. 

f. Rules and standards are set through the Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regs

g. Evidence sought to confirm responses e.g.  payment terms sought and Insurance levels  

h. When bids received, further analysis is undertaken on the accounts and specifically around 

liquidity and the proportion of turnover which is MCA generated.  

i. The applicant is risk assessed and decisions made on that basis.

j. Appropriate security to cover risk is considered for example a charge may be applied on land or 

property as security for a loan.

2 3 6 a. Internal Audit have tested supplier resilience and offered a number of 

recommendations that will be implemented 

b. New contract function to ensure the financial health of key suppliers is tested in 

contract as well as pre contract to provide early warning.

c. MCA to continue to broaden its supplier base through more effective market 

engagement. 

d. Business Continuity Plans to be re-tested for loss of key suppliers.

e. Work is ongoing with project sponsors to test the forecast cost of schemes 

effected by supply chain pressures.

01.07.22

021 24.02.2022 Commissioned 

Operations and 

Delivery

Jim Dillon 

Gareth Sutton

4 4 16 a. Performance monitoring meetings with all providers are underway to understand planned 

delivery volumes and their delivery intentions.

b. Performance reporting to Management Board has taken place to highlight the current delivery 

challenges. 

c.  Funding & Performance Rules set out the conditions of funding and how underperformance will 

be addressed.                                                                                                d. The MCA has audit step in 

rights should it need to undertake more robust reviews             e. The MCA has some options to 

redeploy funding away from underperforming areas where necessary

f. Options papers have been prepared and presented to Management Board and the Education, 

Skills & Employability Board.  

3 4 12 a. Further performance analysis has been undertaken at the mid-year point and 

again at Period 9 to test outputs achieved to-date and forecast to the end of the 

programme.

b. Performance analysis and monitoring continues to inform remedial actions.

c. An options paper to be prepared and shared with Management Board and 

presented to the Skills Board and the MCA. 

d. Evaluation of 2021/22 approach to determining the required provision and 

commissioning processes for financial year 2022/23

a-c. 30.06.22

d. tbc

Cyber Security

Increase in the number of cyber-attacks, due to the 

pandemic, may lead to penetration resulting in operational 

disruption, data corruption, systems outage and loss of 

finances.

Integration 

We fail to effect the integration to a single way of working, 

which may lead to further disruption and uncertainty, 

resulting in loss of employees and the benefits being 

unachieved.

Investment Strategy

Failure to agree an Investment Strategy, leads to calls for 

the inefficient use of funding, impacting on our ability to 

restructure the South Yorkshire economy.

Financial Health

The MCA does not have the quantum, breadth, and 

flexibility of funding to deliver on all its activities, leading to 

unsustainable calls on reserves. Structural funding issues are 

exacerbated by the inflationary environment and disruption 

to commercial income streams

Supply Chain

The MCA experiences supply chain failure/disruption either 

from a contracted supplier entering into financial distress 

and/or an insolvency event, the market being unable to 

provide services, or the market being unable to deliver 

services at contracted prices. This disrupts provision of 

service, leads to delays, cost pressures, and reputational 

damage. 

Borrowing

The MCA has received new borrowing vires which exposes it 

to new financial risk around exposure to interest rates and 

debt management and also a new compliance regime that 

requires HM Treasury consents for annual borrowing caps

Adult Education Budget (AEB) 

Performance monitoring of AEB provider delivery has 

identified areas of underperformance within the 

programme, this may lead to a failure to deliver all of the 

planned academic year outputs for the region and its 

people, resulting in not capitalising on the benefits of the 

devolution deal and reputational challenges to the MCA and 

partners.  

Workforce Planning 

Inadequate planning for future resource needs, leads to a 

reactive approach, resulting in an overstretched and under 

resourced workforce. 

P
age 40



 

 

 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
09 June 2022 

 
2021/22 Draft Accounts Progress Report 

 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Governance 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Chief Finance Officer/s73 Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Mike Thomas, Deputy s73 Officer 
mike.thomas@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 

Executive Summary 
This report provides Members with an update on the progress of the 2021/22 Annual Accounts 
for the MCA Group. 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Strong public financial management is a key principle of good governance and enables the 
Mayoral Combined Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and 
efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
Members are asked to note the progress of the preparation of the 2021/22 Annual Accounts 
and the indicative timetable for the publication of the audited Statement of Accounts.  
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Not applicable 
 

1.  Background  
  
1.1 Audit Standards & Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the 

statutory accounts of the MCA. The aim of this report is to summarise progress of the 

Page 41

Agenda Item 12



 

 

preparation of the 2021/22 Annual Accounts and the indicative timetable for the 
publication of the audited Statement of Accounts.  

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Good progress is being made with preparation of the 2021/22 Annual Accounts. 

However, Members are asked to note that the timetable for publishing the draft 
accounts has been amended for the reasons set out below.  

  
2.2 In previous years, Finance officers have endeavoured to prepare the draft accounts for 

publication by 31st May, the conventional statutory deadline. However, as the statutory 
deadline for publishing the draft accounts for 2021/22 has been pushed back to 31st  
July, and also due to the fact that the external auditor has recently confirmed that the 
audit will start no earlier than the end of August, the decision has been taken to re-
prioritise Finance resources to an urgent and business-critical financial systems 
upgrade project in the short term, and to allow the team an extra month to ensure that a 
good quality statement of accounts can be produced that has been thoroughly reviewed. 

  
2.3 It is therefore envisaged that the publication of the draft 2021/22 Annual Accounts will 

be deferred to 30th June. The following section sets out the implications of this decision 
on the timetable for the publication of the audited Statement of Accounts.  

  

3. Timetable and Accountability for Implementation 

 
3.1 The indicative timetable for the publication of the audited Statement of Accounts has 

been amended, and the revised version is set out below.  
  
3.2 Members will note the intention to present the draft accounts to the next Committee 

meeting in July.  
 

Publication of draft accounts for SYPTE and MCA group 30th June 

Audit Standards & Risk Committee: presentation of draft MCA 
group accounts 

14th July 

Commencement of external audit End of 
August 

Audit Standards & Risk Committee: progress update on external 
audit 

22nd Sept 

Audit Standards & Risk Committee: scrutiny of audited Statement 
of Accounts 

??? Nov 

MCA Board: approval of audited Statement of Accounts 14th Nov 

Publication of audited Statement of Accounts 30th Nov 
 

 
4. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
4.1 There are no financial or procurement implications associated with this report. 
  

 
 

5. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
5.1 The unaudited Statement of Accounts will be authorised for issue by the Responsible 

Finance Officer on or before 30th June and published on the Authority’s website before 

Page 42



 

 

31st July, thereby meeting the statutory deadline and the requirement to provide an 
approved set of draft accounts to the external auditors before the start of the audit. 
 
The Final Statement of Accounts will be presented to the MCA for formal adoption on 
14th November. 

  
6. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 
  
7. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 There are no equality and diversity issues associated with this report. 
  
8. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no climate change implications associated with this report. 
  
9. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no information and communication technology implications associated with 

this report. 
  
10. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice.   

 
10.1 There are no communications or marketing implications associated with this report, 

however, the Statement of Accounts is required to be published on the Authority’s 
website. 
 

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
None  

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Commercial in confidence 

 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
24 March 2022 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report 

 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa McKenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

 
Executive Summary 
This report provides an update on the progress of the 2021/22 Group Internal Audit Plan 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the Combined 
Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing 
about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are asked to note the progress of 2021/22 audit 
activity and approve any changes to the Internal Audit Plan.  
  

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Internal Audit Progress Report March 2022 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 47

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

Annual reviews for HOIA opinion

Governance

Critical IT Controls

Group audits

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

MCA

AEB

PTE

P
age 50



Commercial in confidence

P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 52



 

Commercial in confidence 

 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
09 June 2022 

 
Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report 

 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   Choose an item. 
 
Has it been included on the                    No 
Forward Plan? 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa Mackenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

Executive Summary 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the 
Authority’s internal audit strategy, and receiving reports as appropriate, from the Internal 
Auditor. This report presents an update on the implementation of the recommendations made 
by Internal Audit. 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Click or tap here to enter text.Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its 
objectives by giving assurance on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good 
governance enables the Combined Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most 
effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in 
South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
Members are asked to review the progress of the implementation of internal audit 
recommendations. 
 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker May 2022 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 55



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2022

Commercial in confidence

2

6

3

6

7

2

3

1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Implemented Overdue Not Yet Due

Low Medium High

P
age 56



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2022

Commercial in confidence

3

P
age 57



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2022

Commercial in confidence

4

P
age 58



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2022

Commercial in confidence

The table below describes how we grade our audit recommendations based on risks: 

Appendix 1: 

Our recommendation ratings

5

Rating Description Possible features

Findings that are fundamental to the management 

of risk in the business area, representing a 

weakness in the design or application of activities 

or control that requires the immediate attention of 

management

• Key activity or control not designed or operating effectively

• Potential for fraud identified

• Non-compliance with key procedures/standards

• Non-compliance with regulation

Findings that are important to the management of 

risk in the business area, representing a moderate 

weakness in the design or application of activities 

or control that requires the immediate attention of 

management

• Important activity or control not designed or operating effectively 

• Impact is contained within the department and compensating controls would detect errors

• Possibility for fraud exists

• Control failures identified but not in key controls

• Non-compliance with procedures/standards (but not resulting in key control failure)

Findings that identify non-compliance with 

established procedures, or which identify changes 

that could improve the efficiency and/or 

effectiveness of the activity or control but which are 

not vital to the management of risk in the business 

area. 

• Minor control design or operational weakness 

• Minor non-compliance with procedures/standards

•

•

P
age 59



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Recommendation Tracker October 2020

Commercial in confidence

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 60



 

Commercial in confidence 

 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
09 June 2022 

 
Internal Audit Draft Annual Report and Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

2021/22 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   Choose an item. 
 
Has it been included on the                    No 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa Mackenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

Executive Summary 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the 
Authority’s internal audit strategy, and receiving reports as appropriate, from the Internal 
Auditor. This report presents an update on the implementation of the recommendations made 
by Internal Audit. 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the Combined 
Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing 
about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
Members are asked to review and receive the Draft Internal Audit Annual Report and HOIA for 
2021/22 
 
List of Appendices Included 
A Draft Annual Report & Interim Head of Internal Audit Opinion  

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft subject to completion and 

finalisation of outstanding 

reviews 

P
age 63

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

P
age 66



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 67



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 68



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 69



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 70



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 72



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 73



Commercial in confidence

P
age 74



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 75



Commercial in confidence

22

8

4
6

13

7

4
3

1

2

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Implemented Superseded Overdue Not Yet Due

Low Medium High

P
age 76



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

9
4

4
8

Not yet due Overdue High Medium Low risk

4

4

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Group Finance Director

Low Medium High

P
age 77



P
age 78



Commercial in confidence

P
age 79



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 80



P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit and Standards Committee 
 

09 June 2021 
 

Annual Governance Review and Draft Annual Governance Statement 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

 Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Governance 
 

Funding Stream: Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    No - Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report 
Steve Davenport, Principal Solicitor/Monitoring Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James, Head of Governance 
Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk   
 

Executive Summary 
This paper reports on the findings of the 2021/22 Annual Governance Review and presents the 
draft Annual Governance Statement (Appendix A) which includes the proposed Governance 
Improvement Plan for the 2022/23 financial year. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Good governance enables the Combined Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the 
most effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses 
in South Yorkshire. 
 

Recommendations  
The Committee is asked to consider the draft Annual Governance Statement and Governance 
Improvement Plan and recommend any amendments or additions ahead presentation to the 
Combined Authority meeting on 25th July. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Not applicable  
  

Page 83

Agenda Item 14

mailto:Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


1.  Background  
  
1.1 It is a statutory requirement for the Authority to review its systems of governance 

and internal control at least once each year, and to publish an Annual Governance 
Statement with its Statement of Accounts 

  
1.2 In addition, there is a requirement to have in place a Governance Improvement 

Plan (GIP) which highlights any identified governance issues, their current status 
and timelines for completion. The proposed Governance Improvement Plan for 
2022/23 can be found at section 4 of the Annual Governance Statement. 

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 An annual review of the effectiveness of systems of internal control is required by 

the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
  

2.2 In January, the Audit and Standards Committee endorsed the approach to the 
Annual Governance Review.  
 
During February and March 2022, an initial review was undertaken, carried out in 
line with the CIPFA guidance and a workshop held with the Management Board. 
The findings of this initial review were reported to the Audit, Standards and Risk 
Committee 24th March. 

  

2.3 During April and May work has continued to conduct an assessment of compliance 
with the Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance, to gain assurance of the 
effectiveness of current arrangements and to identify any opportunities for 
improvement.  

  

2.4 The outputs from the Annual Governance Review process have assisted in the 
preparation of the Annual Governance Statement which has been prepared in 
accordance with the CIPFA ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
Framework 2016’. The main principle underpinning this guidance from CIPFA 
continues to be that local government should develop and shape its own approach 
to corporate governance, taking into account the environment in which it operates. 
 
CIPFA guidance also advises that the statement should be a meaningful but brief 
communication regarding the review that has taken place and should be high level, 
strategic and written in an open and readable style. 

  

2.5 Conclusion of the Review 
 
As outlined in the draft Annual Governance Statement, the outcome of the Annual 
Governance Review has concluded that arrangements during the year were fit for 
purpose and robust yet flexible enough to respond to the challenges presented. 
 
Looking ahead 
 
Given the Integration work and the new staffing structures being embedded in the 
organisation, during 22/23 we will be reviewing, in conjunction with Internal Audit, 
the process for reviewing the MCA systems of governance and internal control in 
time to implement such changes with the formal dissolution of the PTE in April 
2023. 

Page 84



3. Timetable and Accountability for Implementation 
  
3.1 The Annual Governance Statement outlines the effectiveness of the Authority’s 

governance arrangements over the previous financial year. The Governance 
Improvement Plan sets out the improvement activity for the year end 31st March 
2023.  

  
4. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
4.1 There are no financial or procurement implications associated with this report. 
  
5. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
5.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires Combined Authorities to 

prepare an Annual Governance Statement in order to report publicly on the extent 
to which they comply with their own code of governance. 

  
6. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 
  
7. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 There are no equality and diversity issues associated with this report. 
  
8. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no climate change implications associated with this report. 
  
9. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no information and communication technology implications associated 

with this report. 
  
10. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice.   

 
10.1 There are no communications or marketing implications associated with this report, 

however, the report will be published on the Authority’s website. 
 

List of Appendices Included 
 
A Draft Annual Governance Statement including Governance Improvement Plan 2022/23 

 

Background Papers 

Item 15 24th March 2022 Annual Governance Review - initial findings 
Item 14 27th January 2022 Annual Governance Review Process  
  

 

Page 85

https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/documents/s10856/Annual%20Governance%20Review.pdf
https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/documents/s10229/14%20Annual%20Governance%20Review%20Process%20v2.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

1 
 

South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority 

Annual Governance Statement Year Ended 31st March 2022 

Executive Summary 

Scope of Responsibility 

The South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority (“the Authority”) is responsible for 

ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with law and that proper 

standards of governance are employed; that public money is safeguarded and 

properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The 

Authority has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs and to secure continuous 

improvement in how its functions are exercised. 

This statement explains how we have complied with our Local Code of Corporate 

Governance and also meets the requirements of Regulation 6 (1a and 1b) of the 

Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 in relation to conducting a review at 

least once per year of the effectiveness of systems of internal control. These 

regulations also require a statement reporting on the findings of the review to be 

published with the Statement of Accounts in the form of an Annual Governance 

Statement. 

What do we mean by Governance? 

By governance, we mean the arrangements that are put in place to ensure that our 

intended outcomes are defined and achieved. The term ‘Governance Framework’ is 

used to describe the systems and processes, cultures and values, by which the 

activities we are accountable for, are directed and controlled. We recognise that to 

be truly effective, these arrangements must be robust but also adaptable to changing 

circumstances including the expectations of the public and of other stakeholders. We 

are committed to addressing governance issues as they arise and to keeping our 

arrangements under review. 

What is ‘good governance’? 

Fundamentally, good governance is about making sure we do the right things, in the 

right way, for the right people. Our commitment to good governance is set out in our 

Code of Corporate Governance. This Code, aligned the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering 

Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016, has been in place for the 

year ended 31st March 2022, and describes how we will carry out our functions in a 

way that shows accountability, transparency, effectiveness, integrity, and inclusivity.  

Working in this way will allow us to deliver our objectives in the most effective and 

efficient manner, bringing about better, sustainable outcomes for the residents, 

communities and businesses of South Yorkshire.   

Summary of governance issues during 2021/22 

There have been a number of factors that have challenged and tested our 

governance arrangements during the year: 

Page 87



Appendix A 

2 
 

 

- Initially driven by a recommendation from the independent Bus Review, which 

concluded in 2020, 2021/22 has seen the Authority embark on a major 

change programme to integrate with South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 

Executive. This programme aimed to create a single entity responsible for bus 

strategy and delivery in South Yorkshire ensuring clear lines of accountability, 

alignment of strategic priorities and greater political oversight. It also provided 

the opportunity to assess and review how we are organised, and the way we 

need to work, to be able to deliver the sustainable economic change our 

region needs.  

- The Covid-19 pandemic has continued to place significant demands on the 

Authority during the year with sustained pressure on the viability of the public 

transport network due to reduced or terminated recovery funding from central 

government, and lower levels of patronage.  

- With the addition of new funding streams, and borrowing powers conferred 

from Government, the investment programme of the Authority provides a 

generational opportunity to innovate and do things differently. Work to scope 

out our Investment Strategy and the future regional long-term way of working 

has required substantial and sustained development. 

Throughout this, the majority of the workforce continued to work remotely, until the 

latter part of the year, which has seen a return to the office environment and the 

adoption of hybrid working arrangements. 

Our evaluation of the effectiveness of our governance arrangements in the context of 

these issues has concluded that arrangements were fit for purpose and robust yet 

flexible enough to respond to the challenges presented. The organisation has been 

able to undertake its day-to-day activities effectively and the systems and processes 

in place have provided a robust level of control. 

Statement by the Chair of the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority 

and the Chief Executive 

On the basis of the sources of assurance set out in this statement, we are satisfied 

that, throughout the year 2021/22, and up to the date of the approval of the 

accounts, a satisfactory system of internal control has facilitated good governance of 

the Authority’s affairs and the effective exercise of its functions. 

We are satisfied that the comprehensive evaluation process undertaken has 

identified the relevant areas for attention over the forthcoming year. The action plan, 

monitored by the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee, will (when implemented) 

further enhance the Authority’s governance, risk and internal control framework. 

 

………………………………………………………... 

 

On behalf of the South Yorkshire Region Mayoral Combined Authority  

Page 88



Appendix A 

3 
 

1. Identification of key governance arrangements 

The organisational governance structure in place during the year is shown below: 

 

Fig 1: 2020/21 Governance Structure 

The Authority’s Constitution sets out the governance arrangements of the 

organisation including terms of reference for four thematic boards and two statutory 

committees (shown above). The Constitution defines the operating principles of the 

Authority and embraces a suite of policies including, but not limited to, Codes of 

Conduct, Whistleblowing, Anti-fraud and Bribery, Contract Procedure Rules, Finance 

Regulations and the Code of Corporate Governance.  

The Constitution also sets out the functions and delegated responsibilities of the 

statutory officers, namely the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive), the Section 73 

Officer (Chief Finance Officer) and the Monitoring Officer. 

The Chief Finance Officer (CFO) operates in line with the CIPFA Statement on the 

Role of the CFO in Local Government (2016) and is actively involved in, and able to 

bring influence to bear on all material decisions to ensure that immediate and longer-

term implications, opportunities and risks are fully considered. The CFO leads on the 

promotion and delivery of good financial management, which aims to ensure that 

public money is safeguarded and used in an appropriate, economic and effective 

manner.  

All Statutory Officers have direct access to the Chair of the Combined Authority with 

reference to their core statutory and professional roles. 

The Authority also has in place an Assurance Framework which is updated annually 

and sets out how public money will be used responsibly, outlining the processes for 

ensuring openness and accountability for public funds.  

The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee provide a high-level focus on assurance 

and governance arrangements. Their role is to ensure that the Authority fulfils its 

Page 89



Appendix A 

4 
 

legal obligations, complies with statutory requirements, is managing risk effectively 

and has robust control measures in place for all devolved powers and funding.  

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee holds the Authority to account for all 

decisions taken, including those relating to devolved powers and funding. They have 

the authority to review and scrutinise any decision made, or action taken and are 

responsible for checking that the Authority is delivering objectives, and that policies, 

strategies and plans are made in the best interests of residents and workers in the 

region. 

Our Strategic Economic Plan 2020-40 sets out our vision and policy objectives to 

grow the economy at pace and at scale, ensuring that all people and places have a 

fair opportunity to contribute to, and benefit from prosperity. Our Corporate Plan is 

focussed on the immediate term and identifies what we are going to do, how we are 

going to do it and what we aim to achieve over the next three years to achieve our 

objectives of growth, inclusion and sustainability.  

2. Reviewing and evaluating of the effectiveness of the Governance 

Framework 

The review of effectiveness has been informed by: 

• The Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report which provides an opinion on the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the MCA’s risk management, control and 

governance processes 

• The Strategic Risk Register which sets the culture and tone for the management 

of threats, concerns and assurances across the organisation 

• The work of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee which includes 

responsibility for monitoring the effectiveness of the Authority’s governance 

arrangements and control environment 

• Internal management processes 

• The report of the MCA’s External Auditor 

• Recommendations from externals bodies/government departments 

• A series of interviews with officers and a Management Board workshop where we 

have assessed and evaluated our compliance with our Code of Corporate 

Governance and the effectiveness of our governance framework.  

We are content that our system of internal control is satisfactory and has facilitated 

compliance with the principles of good governance during the year.  

2.1 Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

The role of the Internal Auditor is to provide an independent assessment of the 

system of internal control.  They undertake a cyclical review of the main financial and 

operational systems on a rolling three-year Audit Plan which is based on an analysis 

of where there is most risk.  Core financial systems are reviewed on an annual basis.  

Internal Audit works closely with External Audit and complies with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

The Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report for 2021/22 has included the following 

draft opinion: 

Page 90



Appendix A 

5 
 

“My overall opinion for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 is that based 

on the scope of the reviews undertaken and the sample tests completed 

during the period, ‘significant’ assurance with some improvement required’, 

can be given on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 

framework of governance, risk management and control.  

In issuing my opinion, I have taken into consideration where reviews have 

concluded a ‘partial assurance opinion with improvement required’. We 

identified weaknesses in some areas which put objectives at risk. These 

included Asset Management, Supplier Resilience and Assessing the Risk of 

Fraud. We acknowledge that these are areas of known risk to the Authority 

and were included in our audit plan on this basis, however, the weaknesses 

identified lead us to conclude that only a ‘partial assurance with improvement 

required’ opinion can be given to the Framework of Internal Control. This does 

not prevent us from providing a ‘significant assurance opinion with some 

improvement’ required opinion overall as action is in progress to address 

issues raised.” 

The most significant weaknesses identified through internal audit reviews are related 

to Asset Management and Supplier Resilience. Since the conclusion of these 

reviews, good progress has been made in determining and implementing the target 

operating models in each area. In addition, Supplier Resilience is monitored via the 

corporate risk register referred to as ‘supply chain failure’. The register captures the 

controls in place and further actions to be taken to mitigate or reduce the risk, and is 

monitored regularly through the agreed risk management approach.  

2.2 CIPFA Code of Financial Management 

During the year we have also continued to monitor our compliance with the new 

CIPFA Code of Financial Management.  The Code includes six principles of good 

financial management: 

1. Leadership 

2. Accountability 

3. Transparency 

4. Standards 

5. Assurance 

6. Sustainability 

The Code then translates these principles into an explicit set of standards (17 in 

total) which is re-assessed on an annual basis.  

3. Accountability and Action Plans 

3.1 Progress against our Governance Improvement Plan for 2021/22 

Although no significant issues were identified in the previous financial year, we 

identified areas for improvement and put in place a Governance Improvement Plan. 

The plan, and our progress against, has been monitored by the Audit, Standards and 

Risk Committee at each of their meetings during the year. The Committee agreed to 

the conclusion of the plan at their meeting in March 2022, recognising that some 

Page 91



Appendix A 

6 
 

actions, whilst ‘completed’ would continue to be implemented or embedded into the 

new financial year and become part of business as usual. 

Table 1: Progress against our Governance Improvement Plan for 2021/22 

Focus for 2021/22 Progress to date 

Strategic   

Continued implementation of 
operational improvements to 
public transport as a 
consequence of the Bus Review 
and subsequent national policy 
statements 

COMPLETED 

The actions agreed in year have been 
completed although many of the actions to 
deliver the Enhanced Partnership and to 
commence the work on franchising options, as 
agreed by the MCA in March 2022 will continue 
as part of business objectives in 22/23.  

Implementation of the assured 
plan for full integration of the 
PTE into the MCA 

COMPLETED 

The organisational structure and operating 
model were implemented by the end of the 
financial year. 2022/23 will see the next phase 
of organisational development work to transition 
to a single set of systems and processes and to 
fully embed a new single corporate culture.   
DELAYED 

The formal dissolution of the PTE has not taken 
place. There is a commitment by Government 
to ensure this takes place by the end of the 
financial year 2022/23. Having two legal entities 
in place requires a number of process work 
around arrangements, delaying the full 
realisation of many of the benefits of 
integration.  

Implementation of new decision-
making arrangements e.g., 
broadening the scope of the 
Transport Thematic Board 

COMPLETED 

New Terms of Reference have been introduced 
and implemented. A supporting Officer Group, 
chaired by the lead Chief Executive has been 
established to inform and support decision 
makers. 

Development, agreement to and 
implementation of the Strategic 
Investment Framework 

COMPLETED 

Development of the framework for the Strategic 
Investment Framework has been undertaken 
through a phased approach, based on a set of 
agreed principles, taken forward by a 
collaborative officer working group with regular 
oversight by the MCA Board.  
 
 

 

Operational   

Development of new corporate 
structure and clearly defined 
responsibilities for the single 
integrated organisation 

COMPLETED 

The detailed structure and operating model 
were implemented 1st April 2022. 

Page 92



Appendix A 

7 
 

  

Implementation phase COMPLETED 

All ringfenced recruitment was completed in a 
timely manner which ensured officers of the 
MCA and PTE were able to commence 22/23 
working in the new organisational structure. 

Development of a target 
operating model for governance 
to be developed and 
implemented within the year 

COMPLETED 
The detailed structure and operating model 
were implemented 1st April 2022. 

Development of a target 
operating model for risk 
management to be developed 
and implemented within the year 

COMPLETED 

A new Risk Management Framework, Risk 
Register, Risk Appetite Statement and reporting 
and escalation framework has been agreed by 
Management Board and endorsed by the Audit, 
Standards and Risk Committee. The 
Framework is being tested and socialised with 
officers and is supporting the identification of 
risks in each Business Plan area. The 
Framework will go to the MCA Board for 
approval in July. 

Development of a target 
operating model for financial 
management to be developed 
and implemented within the year 

COMPLETED 

A target operating model for the integrated 
Group Finance Team has been adopted and is 
being implemented. 
  

Development of a target 
operating model for procurement 
to be developed and 
implemented within the year 

COMPLETED  
Work has progressed to revise the Contract 
Procedure Rules and to agree the workflows 
from business planning, through to a 
procurement pipeline and then, in practical 
terms, the interface between finance, 
procurement and decision makers.  
  

This is partially implemented due to the failure 
to formally dissolve the PTE, consequently 
there are workarounds to bridge the gap and 
transition the PTE into the single approach. 
Work will continue into 22/23. 

Development of a target 
operating model for programme 
management to be developed 
and implemented within the year 

COMPLETED 

Work has progressed to stand-up a new 
corporate PMO function, with clarity of purpose 
and function. Work will continue in 22/23 to 
establish the team and embed the way of 
working. 

Review, agree and implement a 
new officer scheme of 
delegation 

COMPLETED 

Approved by the MCA in September. 

Embedding of new Contract 
Procedure Rules and a Social 

COMPLETED 

Page 93



Appendix A 

8 
 

Value Policy and officer briefing 
and training 

Contract Procedure Rules have been refreshed 
in year and the MCA board approved the 
progressive procurement and social value 
eligibility criteria in March 2022. 

Roll out of new corporate 
induction 

COMPLETED 

Roll-out of all resources on the eLearning 
portal, supplemented by face-to-face office 
induction, Chief Executive meet and greet and 
organisational induction. Resources have been 
updated to reflect the single organisation. 

Roll out and evaluation of single 
process for performance 
development reviews across the 
integrated organisation 

COMPLETED 

Roll out of process commenced May 2021. 
Process is subject to review and re-design to 
fully reflect vision, values and ways of working 
changes that arise from the integration into a 
single organisation. 

Implementation of new job 
evaluation system for the 
integrated organisation, 
including renewal of all MCA 
Executive job profiles to reflect 
new values etc 

COMPLETED 

Work has concluded on the job evaluation and 
read across between MCA and PTE. 

Implement arrangements for the 
monitoring of the Corporate and 
business plans. Including the 
introduction of new reporting 
arrangements 

COMPLETED 

A new Corporate Plan, budget and business 
plan have been agreed 

Introduce a new corporate 
assurance management board 
to review all aspects of 
corporate assurance oversight 

DELAYED 

This remains part of the planning, but 
implementation has been delayed. This is not 
impacted on any decision making or 
governance improvement actions as all matters 
continue to be considered by the full 
Management Board, through governance 
focused workshops and Boards 

Monitor and manage the impact 
of the integration on BAU 
strategic and operational risks 

COMPLETED 

The review was completed and has influenced 
the new corporate risk management framework 

Refresh core policy documents 
inc Assurance Framework, 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
Framework etc 

COMPLETED 
Considered by the Audit, Standards and Risk 
Committee and approved by the MCA in March 
22 

Review learning from 2018 and 
implement a plan to run the 
2022 Mayoral Election 

COMPLETED 

Planning commenced in November 2021, to 

consider lessons from 2018 and from running 

elections in the pandemic. Update meetings 

were held with the Electoral Commission and a 

compliant election delivered in May 2022. 

Develop an action plan to 
implement improvements to 

COMPLETE  

Page 94



Appendix A 

9 
 

compliance with the Financial 
Management Code 

The MCA is compliant with this activity and has 
embedded the core principles. Compliance will 
be re-assessed annually.  

Delivery   

Embed cross organisational 
Collaboration Teams to improve 
the effectiveness of major 
programme delivery 

COMPLETE 

The Organisational Operating Model is built 
around cross organisational collaboration / 
matrix teams, which will continue to be 
embedded in 22/23 and developed through 
lessons learned activity.  
 

Full review of the lifecycle of 
programme development 
concluded and improvements 
made to inform continual 
development 

COMPLETE 

The independent review phase of the Business 
Process Re-engineering work reported in July 
21 to the regions Local Authority Chief 
Executives. A new phase was then led by the 
Director of Resources for Sheffield City Council 
and the MCA Deputy Chief Executive, to plan 
and implement actions arising from the review. 
There is no fixed end date on this work, the 
ambition is to have an initial implementation 
plan developed in 2022. 

 

3.2 Audit Recommendations 

There were two recommendations made as a result of the 2020/21 external audit. 

These were in respect of the control environment and are as follows: 

1. Undertake a periodic and final review of the fixed asset register at year end to 

ensure that the register is being correctly updated and maintained as a 

supporting schedule to the final figures in the statements. 

Status – the fixed asset register has been reviewed as part of closing down 

the 2021/22 accounts.  

2. Management to undertake a full review of the accounts and related disclosure 

notes to ensure that the disclosure notes agree to the main statements within 

the accounts and that they comply with the requirements of the code. 

Status – this recommendation has been included as an added process check 

in drafting out the Authority’s 2021/22 Statement of Accounts.    

There are no outstanding recommendations from any years prior. Whilst there was 

slippage on the implementation of some internal audit recommendations during the 

year all have been completed prior to the conclusion of the external audit. 

4.  Governance Improvement Plan for 2022/23 

Although no significant issues have been identified as a result of this year’s 

evaluation, we are committed to continually strengthening and improving our 

governance arrangements and, during 2022/23, will particularly focus on the 

following key activities. 

Page 95



Appendix A 

10 
 

The Governance Improvement Plan consists of actions identified from the Annual 

Governance Review 21/22 which will support the organisation’s strategic priorities.  

CIPFA/SOLACE Framework – Principle B - Ensuring openness and 

comprehensive stakeholder engagement  

• Improve the way we engage with and listen to our customers by actively 

pursuing their views through an agreed and published plan of consultations 

based on the priorities of the Corporate Plan, including the Bus Service 

Improvement Plan and franchising.  

• Improve our responsiveness to customer enquiries and complaints by tracking 

and monitoring issues and making necessary process changes to improve 

customer experience at an operational level.  

CIPFA/SOLACE Framework - Principle C - Ensuring our outcomes are defined 

in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits   

• Improve our plans and strategies by ensuring they illustrate the contribution 

they will make to changing the regions’ economic outlook.   

• Improve how we design and develop our programmes of activity, by including 

a suite of economic indicators and outcomes that clarify the impact the activity 

needs to achieve to realise the economic growth required.  

• Improve the understanding our internal teams and partners have of the impact 

we are seeking from our programmes and investments.  

CIPFA/SOLACE Framework - Principle D - Planning interventions that optimise 

the achievement of intended outcomes.  

• Improve how we shape and challenge the options and strategies open to 

South Yorkshire decision makers by developing relationships with national 

academics, research and development leaders and policy makers across all 

our agendas.  

• Improve our approach to stakeholder engagement seeking to broaden our 

stakeholder base and develop significant new relationships with the financial 

sector to lever far greater investment in South Yorkshire.  

CIPFA/SOLACE Framework – Principle E - Developing the entity’s capacity, 

including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it  

• Improve the support given to our workforce by implementing the agreed 

Management Code, that sets out the management commitment to teams to 

ensure colleagues are supported and accountable, and receive feedback. To 

ensure a consistent and good experience of work and clear pathways to raise 

any issues.  

• Improve our business operations by developing and agreeing a corporate 

development plan to embed, through a number of clearly defined business 

improvement projects, the vision of the integrated organisation and the core 

values into our ways of working and behaviour.  

Page 96



Appendix A 

11 
 

• Improve the physical environment of the workforce to enhance the employee 

experience and support a culture of collaboration and innovation.  

CIPFA/SOLACE Framework – Principle F - Risks and performance are 

managed through robust internal control and strong public financial 

management  

• Improve how we use management information to provide assurance on 

organisational performance.  

• Improve the management of risks by embedding the new risk management 

framework.  

• Improve the management of our corporate policies and procedures that 

provide a framework for our operating environment.  

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit and Standards Committee 
 

09 June 2021 
 

Draft Annual Report 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

 Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Governance 
 

Funding Stream: Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    No - Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report 
Steve Davenport, Principal Solicitor/Monitoring Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James, Head of Governance 
Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk   
 

Executive Summary 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report summarises the work of the 
Committee during 2021/22, demonstrating how it has fulfilled its terms of reference and 
provided assurance to the Authority on its governance arrangements, risk management 
arrangements and the internal control environment. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Good governance enables the Combined Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the 
most effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses 
in South Yorkshire. 
 

Recommendations  
The Committee is asked to consider the draft Annual Report and recommend any amendments 
or additions ahead presentation to the Combined Authority meeting on 25th July. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Not applicable  
  

Page 99

Agenda Item 15

mailto:Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


1.  Background  
  
1.1 The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is a key component of corporate 

governance providing an independent, high-level focus on the audit, assurance 
and reporting framework underpinning financial management and governance 
arrangements. Its purpose is to provide independent review and assurance of 
governance arrangements, risk management and control frameworks. It also 
undertakes the Authority’s Standards Committee function. 
 
The terms of reference for the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are included in 
Part 4D of the MCA Constitution1. 

  
1.2 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has issued 

guidance to help ensure that Audit Committees operate effectively. The guidance 
recommends that Audit Committees should report annually on how they have 
discharged their responsibilities. A copy of the Draft Annual Report for 2021/22 is 
provided at appendix A. 

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 The Annual Report sets out the membership of the Committee for 2021/22 and 

provides detail on attendance and quoracy levels as well as an overview of the 
work of the Committee. It also summarises the work of the internal and external 

audit functions, provides information on the level of public engagement with the 
Committee and aims to demonstrate how the Committee has fulfilled its terms of 
reference and provided assurance to the Authority during the year. 

  

2.2 Effectiveness 
 
CIPFA guidance recommends that Audit Committees undertake an assessment of 
their own effectiveness annually. A survey to facilitate this took place in quarter 
four, closing on 22nd March. The Committee considered the results of the survey at 
the meeting 24th March. The Annual Report summarises the outcome of the self-
evaluation and proposes an improvement plan to address some of the findings. 
This can be found at section 6 of the report. 
 
In particular, Members are asked to note the actions (p.10, table 3) to explore 
whether a smaller committee might have a positive effective on attendance and 
quoracy as well as facilitate a deeper level of debate and discussion. This action 
has been taken forward as part of the current nomination process. A report is to be 
considered by the MCA on 6th June which gives the Leaders 2 options, remain with 
the existing 10 Member arrangements or, as an alternative option, the membership 
is reduced to four elected members, one from each Local Authority. The proposal 
can still meet the political balance requirements of the legislation. 
 
In either option and in line with existing arrangements, it is proposed that each 
member will have a substitute of the same political party and the Committee will 
retain two independent member posts. 
 
The outcome of the MCA’s discussion will be reported to the Committee at the 
meeting 9th June.  

 
1 https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=181&info=1&bcr=1  

Page 100

https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=181&info=1&bcr=1


 
3. Timetable and Accountability for Implementation 
  
3.1 Target dates will be added to the Effectiveness Improvement Plan once agreed, 

and a final draft of the Annual Report will be presented to the MCA on 25th July.  
  
4. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
4.1 There are no financial or procurement implications associated with this report. 
  
5. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
5.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 
  
6. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 
  
7. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 There are no equality and diversity issues associated with this report. 
  
8. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no climate change implications associated with this report. 
  
9. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no information and communication technology implications associated 

with this report. 
  
10. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice.   

 
10.1 There are no communications or marketing implications associated with this report, 

however, the report will be available on the Authority’s website. 
 

List of Appendices Included 
 
A Draft Annual Report 2022 

 
Background Papers 
 

Committee Engagement and Annual Report Proposal - ASRC 15th July 2021  
  

 

Page 101

https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/documents/s6294/Committee%20Engagement%20and%20Annual%20Report%20Proposal.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 1 of 10 
 

 
 
 
 

 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 
 

2022 
 

  

Page 103



 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 2 of 10 
 

 

 
 
 

Contents 
 
 

Foreword from the Chair of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 

1. Introduction 
 

2. Membership  
 

• Gender balance 

• Nomination of Chair and Vice-chair 
 

3. Highlights of the year 
 
• Summary of work undertaken in 2021/22 

• Internal Audit 

• External Audit 
 

4. Performance Information  
 

• Quorum and attendance 

• Report publication 

• Public engagement 
 

5. Self-Evaluation of Committee Effectiveness 
 

• Skills and knowledge 

• Relationships and communication 

• Administrative and operational arrangements 

• Outcome 
 

6. Effectiveness Improvement Plan 
 
  

Page 104



 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 3 of 10 
 

 

Foreword from the Chair of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 
 
I am pleased to present the report of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee for the year 
2021/22. The report covers the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 and is the first annual 
report prepared by the Committee since its establishment. 
 
I was elected Chair at my first meeting of, what was then, the Sheffield City Region (SCR) Audit 
and Risk Committee. It has been a baptism of fire for me as chairperson of, what I consider to 
be an interesting and informative committee, whose role is to be sighted on some of the most 
important issues in local government. During the year, proceedings have often been made more 
difficult by Covid forcing remote working, in addition, the organisation has undergone a 
significant change programme to integrate the Authority with the Passenger Transport 
Executive, part of this being a name change to ‘South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority’ 
(SYMCA), which better describes the Authority’s and Committee’s ambit.  
  
Besides the audit and risk functions of the committee there have been clear organisational 
issues which flow from its constitution. As we make the transition from SCR to SYMCA and from 
Mayor Jarvis to Mayor Coppard, it is appropriate that changes to the constitution are duly 
considered to ensure the committee be seen to be effective on behalf of the residents and 
communities of South Yorkshire to whom the Committee is accountable.  
  
As Chair of the Committee, with its membership drawn from all authorities and all political 
parties’, I have felt that proceedings have often been unwieldly. I am therefore keen to explore 
some of the options for improving the effectiveness of the committee as set out in section six of 
this report, including comprising the committee of local authority audit chairs and the potential 
provision of allowances.  
 
I would like to extend my thanks to independent members Angela Marshall and Rhys Jarvis for 
their valuable input, particularly on the transition to a new single organisation, and to elected 
members and officers for their hard work on the issues addressed by the committee day to day. 
 
 
Cllr Phil Lofts, Chair – SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

  

Page 105



 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 4 of 10 
 

1. Introduction 
 
This report is produced in accordance with best practice guidance1 and demonstrates the 
Authority’s commitment to operating the highest standards of governance. It demonstrates how 
the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee has successfully fulfilled its terms of reference and 
overseen improvements to the Authority’s governance arrangements, risk management 
arrangements and control environment. 
 
The Committee plays a key role in ensuring that the organisation is fulfilling its legal obligations, 
complying with statutory requirements, is managing risk effectively and has robust control 
measures in place for all devolved powers and funding. The Committee advises on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of governance arrangements and scrutinises, reviews and 
endorses the Treasury Management Strategy, Financial Regulations and statutory accounts, 
before they are finalised and presented to the MCA Board for approval. 
 
Minutes of the Committee’s meetings are available on the Authority’s website2. 
 

2. Membership  
 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee comprises 12 members: ten elected members 
nominated by the four South Yorkshire Local Authority’s, and 3two independent members 
appointed by the MCA. The quorum for meetings is two thirds.  
 
As required by ‘The Combined Authorities (Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Access to 
Information and Audit Committees) Order 2017’4 the membership of the Committee, so far as 
reasonably practical, reflects the balance of political parties of the constituent councils (as per 
the outcome of the 2021 local elections) The re-appointment in 2021 of a number of members 
who had served on the Committee in the previous year, provided a level of continuity. 
 
During the year the membership comprised the following: 
  

Councillor Party Authority represented 

Councillor Allan Jones Conservative Doncaster MBC 

Councillor Austen White Labour Doncaster MBC 

Councillor Ben Curran Labour Sheffield City Council 

Councillor Emily Barley Conservative Rotherham MBC 

Councillor Ian Auckland Liberal Democrats Sheffield City Council 

Councillor Joanna Baker-Rogers Labour Rotherham MBC 

Councillor Joe Otten Liberal Democrats Sheffield City Council 

Councillor Ken Richardson Labour Barnsley MBC 

Councillor Phillip Lofts Labour Barnsley MBC 

Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards Labour Sheffield City Council 

Angela Marshall  Independent 

Rhys Jarvis  Independent 

Table 1 Audit, Standards and Risk Committee membership 

To support quoracy requirements, the Committee has in place a ‘reserve’ member arrangement 
for elected members. Reserve members are as follows: 

 
1 https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-authority-audit-committees  
2 https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=142  
3 The Combined Authorities (Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Access to Information and Audit Committees) Order 2017 
requires the authority to appoint at least one independent person  
4 The Combined Authorities (Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Access to Information and Audit Committees) Order 2017 

Page 106

https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees/local-authority-audit-committees
https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=142
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/part/4/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/part/4/made


 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 5 of 10 
 

 

Reserves Party Authority represented 

Councillor Barry Johnson  Labour Doncaster MBC 

Councillor Dianne Hurst  Labour Sheffield City Council 

Councillor Glenn Bluff Conservative Doncaster MBC 

Councillor John Clarke Labour Barnsley MBC 

Councillor Mick Stowe Labour Barnsley MBC 

Councillor Tim Huggan Liberal Democrats Sheffield City Council 

Councillor Tony Browne Labour Rotherham MBC 

Councillor Tracey Wilson Conservative Rotherham MBC 

Table 2 Audit, Standards and Risk Committee reserve membership 

Gender balance 
 
During the year the gender balance of the substantive membership of the committee (including 
independent members) was 66% male and 33% female.  
 
Nomination of Chair and Vice-chair 
 
The Terms of Reference state that the Committee should be chaired by an Elected Member and 
the Vice-chair should be an Independent Person. Appointments are made annually at the first 
quorate meeting of the Committee after the Authority’s AGM. Cllr Phil Lofts was elected Chair 
and, independent member, Rhys Jarvis, Vice-chair at the meeting held 515th July 2021.  
 

3. Highlights of the year 
 
The main outcomes and benefits of the work of the committee during the period have included: 
 

• An unqualified External Audit opinion on the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts, confirming 
their accuracy and completeness 

• The recommendation of the 2020/21 accounts (in line with the amended timetable) to the 
MCA 

• A positive opinion from the Head of Internal Audit in their 2020/21 Annual Report 

• The development of a Risk Management Framework for the new integrated organisation 

• The establishment of the Audit, Standards and Risk Panel to ensure sufficient and 
effective risk assurance and oversight of operational transport issues including health 
and safety, PTE accounts as well as assurance around the programme to integrate the 
PTE and MCA. The Panel is chaired by independent member Angela Marshall and 
reports to the Committee at each meeting. 

 
Summary of Work Undertaken in 2021/22 
 
The Committee agreed a work plan at its meeting in July 2021 and included the following issues 
as standing items on all of its agendas: 
 

• The monitoring of strategic risk and the development of a new risk management 
framework for the single integrated organisation 

• The progress of the internal audit plan  

• The progress of actions taken to address internal audit recommendations 

• Monitoring of the Authority’s Governance Improvement Plan  
 

 
5 https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=386&Ver=4  

Page 107

https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=386&Ver=4


 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 6 of 10 
 

 
In addition, during the year the Committee has considered the following matters: 
 

• Breaches of contract procurement rules  

• Health and Safety reporting 

• Treasury Management Strategy 

• Code of Corporate Governance revision 

• Annual Governance Review process and findings 

• The development of the Annual Governance Statement 

• Governance and assurance arrangements for the programme dealing with the integration 
of the PTE and MCA 

 
Internal Audit 
 
The Authority’s internal audit function is provided by Grant Thornton. Representatives of Grant 
Thornton attended every Committee meeting during the year. 
 
The Committee reviewed the audit plan and progress against it on a continual basis. The 
Committee received and considered the results of 14 internal audits which resulted in 63 formal 
audit recommendations. The audits and audit opinion can be found in appendix A. 
 
*At time of writing, delivery of the 2021/22 Audit Plan is still in progress. 
 
External Audit 
 
The Authority’s external audit function is provided by Ernst and Young who attended three out 
of six meetings during the period. 
 
Two recommendations were made as part of the 2020/21 external audit. These were in respect 
of the control environment and related to reviews of the fixed asset register and a review of 
disclosure notes. Both of these have been addressed as part of year end processes. 

 
4. Performance Information (supporting data provided at appendix A) 

 
Quorum and attendance 
 
Six meetings were held between June 2021 and March 2022. Three were quorate and three 
were not quorate. 
 
Report publication 
 
For the meetings held between June 2021 and March 2022 a total of 66 reports were 
considered by the Committee. Only two reports were published late. 
   
Public Engagement 
 

• Attendance by members of the public and press 
 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is a statutory meeting, is required to be held in public 
and receive and answer public questions. 
 

Page 108



 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 7 of 10 
 

No members of the public attended any of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee meetings 
during the year or submitted any questions. 
 

• Webcast  
 
Meetings of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are webcast live and made available on 
the Authority’s website for six months, after which, they are archived and available on request. 
 
Live and archived views during the period 10 June 2021 to 31st March 2022 total 297. 
 

• Website page hits 
 
For the meetings held between June 2021 and March 2022 the Committees webpage received 
500 visits. 
 

5. Self-Evaluation of Committee Effectiveness 
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) recommends that Audit 
Committees undertake an assessment of their own effectiveness annually. A survey to facilitate 
this took place in quarter four, closing on 22nd March. Based on the substantive membership of 
the Committee the survey received around a two thirds response rate.  
 
The survey focussed on 3 key areas – skills and knowledge, relationships, and administrative 
and operational arrangements. The key findings are as follows: 
 
Skills and Knowledge 
 
Feedback indicated that Members were confident of their understanding of the role and 
responsibility of the Committee however, there was a range of responses about the level of 
understanding of the key areas of accountability as outlined in the terms of reference. The 
results indicated a desire for further training and awareness around such things as the control 
environment but, indicated a level of confidence around the review and recommendation of the 
statement of accounts.   
 
There was a mixed level of satisfaction on whether the Committee possessed knowledge of the 
core business of the organisation, the wider political landscape and other relevant strategic 
issues. In line with this, when asked about specific areas of development, the findings indicated 
that Members were keen to understand more about the control environment, strategies and 
plans and the wider context that the MCA operates in. 
 
Members were also asked how new members could be better supported when joining the 
Committee. There was a clear indication that it would be beneficial for new members to undergo 
a comprehensive orientation or induction session about their role and about the MCA, along 
with an informal meeting with other members and a short reading list. 
 
Relationships and Communication 
 
Members were asked to rate the effectiveness of the relationship and communication with each 
other and between members and officers. A range of responses were given but there was an 
indication that relationships are effective. However, there were some concerns raised about the 
level of attendance at meetings and the lack of opportunity to build relationships with members 
from other local authorities. 
 

Page 109



 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 8 of 10 
 

The survey also sought opinion about the effectiveness of the relationship between the 
Committee and the MCA and Mayor. The results highlighted that there is a desire to have a 
more productive relationship however, the Committee recognised that whilst this would be 
beneficial, it would be important to maintain a level of independence.   
 
Administrative and Operational Arrangements 
 
The final section of the survey asked members about their satisfaction with the administrative 
and operational arrangements for the Committee. 
 
Feedback indicated that, in terms of conciseness, relevance and quality, there was a good level 
of satisfaction with committee papers however, responses also indicated that document packs 
could sometimes be hard to navigate electronically and challenging to read, particularly where 
excel spreadsheets are used. It was also clear that verbal reports are less welcome and should 
be minimised. 
 
There was a level of satisfaction with the number and range of non-member participants at 
meetings and that the workplan for the Committee met assurance requirements and supported 
the Committee in meeting its accountabilities.  
 
When asked about the quality of debate and discussion at meetings there was a range of 
opinion. The contribution and expertise brought by the independent members was 
acknowledged and some suggestions were made about the structure of the agenda (dividing 
items for information and decision or discussion) to allow for greater focus on key issues.  There 
were further concerns raised about attendance levels and the amount of time available for 
detailed discussion. 
 
Outcome 
 
The outcome of the survey was considered by the Committee at their meeting 24th March and 
the issues were discussed at length. Officers were asked to explore the following matters when 
developing an effectiveness improvement plan: 
 
• Increasing the number of independent members to the Committee 
• Consideration of remuneration for Committee members 
• Automatically appointing the Chair of each local authority to the Committee 
• The importance of a strong induction process 
• Giving voting rights to independent members 
• The value of having the work of the Committee recognised 
 
The Committee agreed unanimously that the matter of attendance needed to be addressed.  
 

6. Effectiveness Improvement Plan 
 
Officers met with the Chair on 17th May to explore the options for responding to the findings of 
the survey to drive improvement.  
 

 Potential barriers to participation and 
contribution 

Possible options and actions 

1. Board membership and composition 
The Combined Authorities (Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees, Access to 

• Undertake an open recruitment 
exercise to renew and grow the 
independent membership of the 
Committee 

Page 110



 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 9 of 10 
 

Information and Audit Committees) Order 
2017 requires  
- at least one independent member to be 
appointed to the Committee 
- requires the Committee, so far as 
reasonably practicable, reflect the 
balance of political parties among 
members of the constituent councils 
when taken together 
 

• Reduce the number of elected 
members on the Committee to one 
from each local authority whilst still 
maintaining political balance 

• Explore possibility of Local Authority 
Chairs automatically assuming 
membership of the MCA Committee   

2. Quoracy requirements 
The Combined Authorities (Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees, Access to 
Information and Audit Committees) Order 
2017 specifies the minimum number of 
members present to transact business be 
no fewer than two-thirds of the total 
number  
 

• Explore whether a smaller more 
focussed Committee has a positive 
impact on attendance and quoracy 
and facilitates a deeper level of 
debate and discussion. MCA Board 
to consider options in June. 

• Pro-active interventions by 
Democratic Services Team to 
encourage attendance. 

3. Voting rights to independent members 
The MCA Constitution states that 
independent persons are non-voting 
positions. 
 
 

• The Committee is not decision 
making. It makes recommendations 
and the independent role has 
influence on those made. 

4. Meeting schedule 
Meeting dates and times are scheduled 
well in advance, avoid local authority full 
council dates, published on the 
Authority’s website and are 
communicated to local authority 
democratic services teams when seeking 
nominations.  
 
 
 

• Explore if a different time of day for 
meetings would be more suitable for 
members  

• MCA Democratic Services team to 
contact members prior to meetings 
and identify where a 
substitute/reserve member may need 
to be contacted 

5. Remuneration/allowances 
The MCA Constitution specifies that no 
allowances will be payable by the 
Authority.  
 
 

• Awaiting confirmation of legislative 
changes that are contained in the 
Levelling Up Bill which will set any 
parameters around allowances. 
Consider an amendment to the MCA 
Constitution as appropriate when 
required. 

 

6. Induction, training and engagement 
Member development is scheduled on the 
Committee workplan however, at times 
other priorities have meant it has not 
taken place. Previously, where training 
has been delivered, attendance has been 
low. 

• Agree training requirements and 
schedule 

• Explore more flexible ways of 
delivering induction and training e.g. 
webinars, recorded presentations 

• Explore possibility of more informal 
elected member events and 
engagement with the Mayor 

Page 111



 

SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Annual Report 2022                                                       Page 10 of 
10 
 

Induction has focussed on essential 
requirements e.g. accessing papers, 
meeting protocol and dates. 

• Democratic Services Team will 
supply all Elected Members with an 
‘Information Pack’ summarising how 
to access papers, meeting dates etc. 

 

7. Report style and content 
Reports utilise the standard MCA board 
paper template and papers are checked 
for accessibility. 

• Continue to develop the report format 
for risk management reports to 
reduce the use of spreadsheets 

Table 3 Effectiveness Improvement Plan 

Page 112



 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

06 June 2022 
 

Health & Safety Quarterly Update 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Purpose of this report: 
 

Monitoring/Assurance 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Steve Davenport, Principal Solicitor/Monitoring Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lynne Sutton 
lynne.sutton@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 

 
Executive Summary 
Quarterly report of health and safety issues within the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 
Authority organisation and estate. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
This monitoring and auditing of health and safety should ensure peace of mind for all 
employees of SYMCA and for all users of the estate. 
 

Recommendations   
It is recommended that the committee note and discuss the contents of the attached report. 

 
1.  Background  
  
1.1 The attached report forms part of a quarterly update to the Management Board on Health 

and Safety issues, including compliance with legislation and any actions taken. 
  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Please see attached report 
  

 

Page 113

Agenda Item 16



3. Consultation on Proposal  
  
3.1 Not applicable 
  
4. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
4.1 Not applicable 
  
5. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
5.1 Not applicable 
  
6. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 Not applicable 
  
7. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 None 
  
8. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 None 
  
9. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 None 
  
10. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 None 
  
11. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice   

 
11.1 None 
  
List of Appendices Included 
A Health & Safety Quarterly Report (1st January to 31st March 2022) 

 - Annex 1 – Analysis of Accidents and Incidents 

- Annex 2 – Analysis of Crime and Disorder Incidents  
- Annex 3 – RIDDOR Incidents  

 

Background Papers 

Not applicable 
  
 

Page 114



 

 
Health & Safety Quarterly Update 
 
VERSION 1.0    
DATE 20 APRIL 2022 
 

 

Contents: 
 

1. Introduction 
 

2. Update 
 

3. Recommendation 
 

4. Appendices 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
This paper, submitted by the Health & Safety Advisor, presents to the Management Board an 
update on health and safety issues and highlights any areas of concern, work currently being 
undertaken and remedial actions taken during the period 1st January to 31st March 2022.   

 

2. UPDATE 
 

 2.1  Accidents and Incidents 
  There were no accidents, incidents or near misses involving any SYMCA staff during the 
  period. 
  
 2.2 Transport Operations 
 
  Accidents and Incidents - Interchanges 

Analysis of Accidents and Incidents by location and type for the period are summarised in 
 Appendix 1.  The total number of accidents and incidents for the period has fallen by 46%, 
compared to the last quarter, with near misses practically halving.     

  
 Analysis of Crime & Disorder Incidents by location and type are summarised in Appendix 

2.  There has been a slight overall increase in incidents on the last quarter by just over 
5% with violence related incidents increasing by just over 9%.   

 
The Health & Safety Advisor has recently met with the Customer Service Managers from 
Meadowhall, as well as representatives from South Yorkshire Police, to draw up a plan of 
action to tackle the issues at Meadowhall, which continue to rise. 
 

 
 RIDDOR (Reporting of Injuries, Diseases & Dangerous Occurrences Regulations) 
 There were four RIDDOR incidents for the relevant period.  Details of these can be found 

in Appendix 3.  All of these appear to be pure accidents where there were no defects or 
errors on the organisation’s area of responsibility.  The incident at Barnsley where a 
young child trapped their fingers in the lift doors was due to the child leaning on the doors 
as they opened.  Additional signage has now been fitted asking parents not to let their 
children lean on the doors. 

 

Page 115



 

  
 Transport Operator Accident Details 
 The Health & Safety Advisor has obtained details from South Yorkshire Supertram 

Limited (SYSL) in relation to their accident statistics.  Due to a difference in their reporting 
periods details are only available up to 5th March and this shows that there were 3 
incidents reported under RIDDOR during this period.  Two of those incidents were where 
staff had been off work as a result of an accident at work for more than 7 days, with the 
other being where an elderly passenger wasn’t holding onto the grab rail as the tram set 
off.  This resulted in her falling and sustaining a suspected hip injury and being taken to 
hospital. 
There have also been two incidents recently where balance anchor weights have failed 
leading to overhead line failure.  SYSL are currently carrying out a review of all balance 
anchor weights and will conduct remediation work as required. 

 
   Information has been provided from First in relation to bus collisions, which shows a slight 

reduction. The Health & Safety Advisor contacted both First and Stagecoach to try and 
get a formalised reporting structure but Stagecoach stated that they are not prepared to 
give more detailed information – which they are not obliged to do.  However the Health & 
Safety Advisor has contacted their new Managing Director to see if he is prepared to 
share more detailed information.  

 
 2.3  Premises Audits 

  The Health & Safety Advisor continues to carry out the premises audits for the 
organisation and can report that the vast majority of issues found are housekeeping 
issues.  There are no areas of major concern. 

 
 2.4 Fire Risk Assessments 

 The Health & Safety Advisor monitors the status of actions identified on the fire risk 
assessments carried out for all sites. All sites have had a fire risk assessment carried out 
in the last few months.  Of the 116 actions identified 60% have already been completed, 
and none of those outstanding are overdue against the target date set by the assessor.   

 
 2.5 Emergency Evacuation Plans 

 The Health & Safety Advisor has received clarification on the minimum numbers of staff to 
be on site at any given time that the main interchanges are open, now that there is a new 
contract in place for Customer Service and Cleaning.  The Emergency Evacuation Plans 
are now being circulated and discussed at sites and their effectiveness monitored.  At the 
present time it is felt that the entry on the risk register should remain. 

 
 A planned emergency evacuation took place on 7th March which showed that, on the 

whole, staff who were on the building at the time evacuated promptly.  The evacuation did 
highlight some issues in relation to the signing in app which are currently being worked 
through by IT.  In the meantime Front of House staff have a manual list of staff, kept 
updated with leavers and starters, and is using this as a register to record people coming 
into and leaving the building. 

 
 2.6 Health & Safety Training Plan/ Mandatory Training 

The Health & Safety Advisor and Learning & Development Officer continue to meet on at 
least a quarterly basis to ensure that all mandatory and recommended health and safety 
training is being arranged and/or completed.  
 
The Health & Safety Advisor has been reminding those people coming into BSW to 
complete the required DSE assessment and can report that compliance is high. 
  

 2.7 Covid 19 
 The Government has now released their plan on ‘living with Covid’ and part of this, in 

relation to businesses, is the fact that a separate risk assessment in relation to Covid is 
no longer required.  The Health & Safety Advisor will however continue to keep up to date 
with any changes, or proposed changes, and update board members accordingly. 

 

Page 116



 

  
 

 

3. RECOMMENDATION 
         The Management Board is asked to note the contents of the report. 

 

4. APPENDICES 
 

 1. Analysis of Accidents and Incidents 
 2. Analysis of Crime and Disorder Incidents 
 3. RIDDOR Incidents 
   

 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Type_of_Incident

Number 

Incidents

Adwick Mini 

Interchange

Barnsley 

Interchange

Barnsley Rail 

Station

Hillsborough 

Mini 

Interchange

Meadowh

all 

Interchang

e

Meadowhall 

Rail Station

Rotherham 

Interchange

Sheffield 

Interchange

Swinton 

Mini 

Interchang

e

Medical/Illness 24 6 1 7 1 2 5 2

Miscellaneous - Substance Abuse 2 2

Moving Vehicle - Bus 1 1

Moving Vehicle - PV/Pedestrian Conflict 1 1

Near Miss 12 3 1 1 7

Off Site Incident 3 1 1 1

Other - Not Classifiable 4 2 1 1

RTA 1 1

Slip/Trip /Fall 10 1 3 1 2 2 1

Medical/Illnes
s

Miscellaneous
- Substance

Abuse

Moving
Vehicle - Bus

Moving
Vehicle -

PV/Pedestrian
Conflict

Near Miss
Off Site
Incident

Other - Not
Classifiable

RTA Slip/Trip /Fall

Number Incidents 24 2 1 1 12 3 4 1 10

Adwick Mini Interchange 1

Barnsley Interchange 6 3 2 1 3

Barnsley Rail Station 1 1 1

Hillsborough Mini Interchange 1 1 1

Meadowhall Interchange 7 7 1 1 2

Meadowhall Rail Station 1 1

Rotherham Interchange 2 2

Sheffield Interchange 5 2 1 1 1

Swinton Mini Interchange 2

24

2

1 1

12

3

4

1

10

1

6

3

2

1

3

1 1 11 1 1

7 7

1 1

2

1 1

2 2

5

2

1 1 1

2

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Appendix 1 (Annex 1)  - Incidents

Number Incidents

Adwick Mini
Interchange
Barnsley Interchange

Barnsley Rail Station

Hillsborough Mini
Interchange
Meadowhall
Interchange
Meadowhall Rail
Station
Rotherham
Interchange
Sheffield InterchangeP

age 119



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Incident_Type

Number 

Incidents

Barnsley 

Interchan

ge

Barnsley 

Rail Station

Dinnington 

Mini 

Interchange

Doncaster 

Interchange

Hillsborough 

Mini 

Interchange

Meadowhall 

Interchange

Meadowhall 

Rail Station

Middlewood 

Park and Ride Off-Site

Rotherham 

Interchange

Sheffield 

Interchange

Swinton 

Mini 

Interch

ange

Begging/Homeless 1 1

Inappropriate Behaviour 7 1 4 1 1

Individuals threatening self-harm/suicide 4 1 3

Not Classified 15 1 1 5 2 3 3

Substance Abuse 10 2 4 3 1

Trespass - Other 1 1

Trespass - Rail 6 1 5

Violence - Anti-Social Behaviour 53 4 7 3 27 3 6 2 1

Violence - Physical Assault 21 3 1 2 5 2 2 5 1

Violence - Theft 2 1 1

Violence - Threatening Behaviour 29 7 1 12 7 2

Violence - Vandalism 17 3 2 9 1 1 1

Violence - Verbal Abuse 19 1 2 13 3

Begging/Homel
ess

Inappropriate
Behaviour

Individuals
threatening

self-
harm/suicide

Not Classified
Substance

Abuse
Trespass - Other Trespass - Rail

Violence - Anti-
Social

Behaviour

Violence -
Physical Assault

Violence - Theft
Violence -

Threatening
Behaviour

Violence -
Vandalism

Violence -
Verbal Abuse

Number Incidents 1 7 4 15 10 1 6 53 21 2 29 17 19

Barnsley Interchange 1 2 4 3 7 3 1

Barnsley Rail Station 1 1 7

Dinnington Mini Interchange 3 1 2

Doncaster Interchange 1 2 1

Hillsborough Mini Interchange 1 2

Meadowhall Interchange 1 4 1 5 4 1 27 5 12 9 13

Meadowhall Rail Station 5 3 2

Middlewood Park and Ride 1

Off-Site 2 2

Rotherham Interchange 1 3 3 3 6 5 1 7 1 3

Sheffield Interchange 1 3 1 2 1 2 1

Swinton Mini Interchange 1

1

7

4

15

10

1

6

53

21

2

29

17

19

1
2

4
3

7

3

11 1

7

3

1
2

1
2

11
2

1

4

1

5
4

1

27

5

12

9

13

5

3
2

1
2 2

1

3 3 3

6
5

1

7

1

3

1

3

1
2

1
2

11

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Appendix 2 (Annex 2) - Crime and Disorder

P
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 (Annex 3) 

HEALTH & SAFETY TRACKING – RIDDOR INCIDENTS 

 

The following are the RIDDOR reportable incidents from 01/01/22 to 31/03/2022 

Ref: 26893 – Barnsley Interchange – 27/01/2022 

A male who was suspected as having been drinking fell on the stairs outside Citizen Café.  

He was having chest pains at the time and it is thought that was the cause of him stumbling, 

as a check of the area showed no defects or hazards to cause him to fall.  Café staff called 

an ambulance and the man was taken to the local hospital. 

 
Ref: 26928 – Sheffield Interchange – 06/03/2022 

An elderly gentleman, who appeared to have fallen, was found by a member of cleaning staff.  

Whilst he had no apparent injuries he was weak and disorientated and was wearing a hospital 

wrist band.  An ambulance was called and after examination he was taken to the local hospital.  

A thorough check of the area where he was found was made and there were no apparent defects 

or anything that could have caused the gentleman to fall. 

 
Ref: 26923 – Rotherham Interchange – 08/03/2022 

An elderly female tripped up the kerb whilst crossing the runway, resulting in a nasty gash to 

her right lower leg.  First Aid was administered by staff on site and an ambulance called.  

Upon examination by ambulance staff the lady was taken to the local hospital.  The area 

where she fell was examined but no defects could be found.  It is thought that she tripped in 

her hastiness to get to the bus. 

 
Ref: 26931 – Barnsley Interchange – 12/03/2022 

A young boy trapped his fingers in the edges of the lift doors.  He was leaning face front on 

the doors as they opened and kept his hands on the doors – due to this his fingers went into 

the small opening where the doors open into.  This is not possible with an adult hand, due to 

the built-in safety mechanism, but due to the small size of his fingers they were bruised.  His 

mother took him straight to the local hospital. 

Additional signage has been ordered asking that children are not allowed to lean on the lift 

doors. 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

09 June 2022 
 

Committee Work Plan 
 
 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public? No 
  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report:  Discussion 
 

Funding Stream: Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                                                              No 

 
Has it been included on the Forward Plan?                  Not a Key Decision 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Steve Davenport, Principal Solicitor/Monitoring Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James, Head of Governance 
claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk   

 
Executive Summary 
This report presents an updated work plan up to July 2022. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Good governance enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most 
effective  
and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South 
Yorkshire.  
 
Recommendations  
Members review the work plan and agree any changes or additional items to be scheduled. 
 
List of Appendices Included 
A Work Plan - chronologically 

 

Page 125

Agenda Item 18

mailto:claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Date Agenda items 

21 October 2021 Advisory Panel Update 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
Annual review of Risk Management arrangements 
Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action 
Internal Audit Reports – Fraud 
Integration Update 
Breach Report 

27 January 2022 Advisory Panel Update 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
Mid-year Treasury Management Strategy report 
Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action 
21/22 AGR Process 
Internal Audit Reports – tbc 
Integration Update 
NEW - Breach of Controls Report 

24 March 2022 
(A morning and  
afternoon session have 
been scheduled)  

Advisory Panel Update 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
Initial findings of the Annual Governance Review 
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan/Internal audit strategy 
Committee Effectiveness 
Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 
Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action 
Internal Audit Reports - tbc 
Annual Review of Code of Corporate Governance 
Integration Update 
Updated Assurance and Accountability Framework 

9 June 2022 Advisory Panel Update 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
External Auditor’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 
Findings of the Annual Governance Review 
Draft Annual Governance Statement 
AMP Technology Centre Performance Update 
Update on 21/22 AGS Governance Improvement Plan Action 
Internal Audit Reports – tbc 
MOVED FROM MARCH - External Audit Annual Plan 
NEW - Breach of Controls Report 
NEW – MCA/SYPTE integration 
NEW – Climate Change Risk Paper 

14 July 2022 Advisory Panel Update 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
AGR Findings and Draft AGS and GIP 
Draft Accounts 
IA Annual Report/Head of Audit Opinion  
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 
Internal Audit Reports  
Internal Audit Reports - tbc 
Work plan for 2022/23 

 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 24 March 2022
	9 Matters Arising/Action Tracker - Update
	10 Annual Report of the Chair of the Audit, Standards & Risk Panel - 31 March 2022
	11 Risk Management
	Appendix A - Corporate Risk Register at May 22

	12 Draft Accounts Progress Report
	13 Internal Audit Reports
	Appendix A - Internal Audit Progress Report May 2022
	Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report
	Appendix A - Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report May 2022
	Internal Audit Draft Annual Report and Interim HOIA 2021-22
	Appendix A - SYMCA Draft Annual Internal Audit Report including Interim HOIA May 2022

	14 Findings of the Annual Governance Review and Draft Annual Governance Statement (including Governance Improvement Plan 202/23)
	Appendix A -  Draft Annual Governance Statement  2022

	15 Draft Chair's Annual Report
	Appendix A - Draft Annual Report

	16 Health and Safety Update/Report
	HS Quarterly Update Report
	HS Report Annex 1
	HS Report Annex 2
	HS Report Annex 3

	18 Work Plan
	Work Plan chronological - updated 16 March 2022


